
OSAWATOMIE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

June 11, 2015 
6:30 p.m., Memorial Hall 

 
1. Call to order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Invocation – Rev. Joe Bell, Osawatomie Church of the Nazarene 
5. Consent Agenda 

Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council member requests an item 
be removed for discussion and separate action 

A. Approve June 11 Agenda 
B. Approve Minutes for May 14 and May 28 
C. Appropriations Ordinance 2015-05 

   
6. Comments from the Public  

Citizen participation will be limited to 5 minutes.  Please stand & be recognized by the Mayor. 
  
7. Presentations 

A. 2014 Audit Presentation – Neil Phillips; Jarred Gilmore & Phillips, PA 
 

8. Public Hearings – none 
 

9. Unfinished Business  
A. 812 South Street Demolition 
B. CDBG Revolving Loan Funds 

 
10. New Business   

A. Appointments – none 
B. Resolution – Waiver of GAAP Requirements for 2015 
C. Amendment to T-Mobile Lease Agreement 
D. 2015-2016 Health Insurance 
E. Review of 2009-2014 Historical Financial Information 

 
11. Council Reports 
12. Mayor’s Report 
13. City Manager’s Report 
14. Executive Session  
15. Other Discussion/Motions 
16. Adjournment 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING – June 25, 2015 
REGULAR MEETING – July 9, 2015  

 
 

1



Osawatomie, Kansas.   May 14, 2015.   The Council meeting was held in the Osawatomie Library. 
Mayor Mark Govea called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.   Council members present were Kirk Wright, 
John Farley, Jeff Walmann, Karen LaDuex, Ted Hunter, Lawrence Dickinson, Nick Hampson and Tamara  
Maichel.   Also present were City Manager Don Cawby, City Atty. Dick Wetzler and Acting City Council 
Secretary Sullivan.   Visitors were City employee Bill Roseberry (Property Management), Osawatomie Fire 
Chief Brian Love. 
 
 INVOCATION.   Reverend Norlita Kaul of the First Presbyterian Church of Osawatomie delivered 
the invocation. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA.    City Manager Don Cawby asked to add to the agenda a ten-minute 
executive session on non-elected personnel.  Councilman Farley asked if the April 23rd meeting minutes 
could be removed from the consent agenda.  Motion by Hunter, seconded by LaDuex to approve the 
Consent Agenda, which includes:  approval of the May 14 Agenda with the addition of an executive session, 
approval of the Council minutes from April 9, approval of Appropriation Ordinance 2015-4, approval of 
the Jamboree fireworks display permit, and approval of the Jamboree special event CMB sales permit, and 
the removal of the April 23 Council minutes.  Yeas:  All.  Motion by Maichel, second by LaDuex to approve 
the April 23 Council minutes as presented with an amendment to reflect that Walmann was present and 
Farley was not.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 PRESENTATIONS:  None 
 
 COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC:  None 
 
 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
 UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
     
 812 South Street.  At the March 12th, 2015 meeting the Council gave Cody McMullen 30 days to 
finish the clean-up of his trailer and revisit the matter at the May 14, 2015 Council meeting.  City Manager 
Cawby would like to give Cody McMullen another 30 days for tearing down the one section left of trailer 
to be removed.  City Manager advised to revisit this first meeting in June.  Staff will contact McMullen and 
advise him of the meeting in June.   Motion by LaDuex and second by Hunter to allow Cody McMullen 
until June 11 to finish the demolition of the trailer.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 Proposed Nuisance Ordinance.  The proposed Ordinance is a carryover of the ordinance studied 
last year.  LaDuex asked to change wording in Section 13-216 to add in storm drains and water ways.  City 
Attorney Wetzler advised it was covered in other areas of the code.   LaDuex concerned about firepits and 
burning.  City Manager Cawby advised will bring firepits and burning to Police Chief Butters attention.  
City Manager Cawby will also check on grassing blowing in streets with nuisance and swing sets.  Motion 
by Hampson, second by LaDuex to approve the proposed Nuisance Ordinance as presented to the Council.  
Yeas:  All.   
 
 Temporary Note Resolution.  The City put out for bid $2,830,000 in Temporary  Notes for the 
refinancing of the current Police Station/Council Room temporary notes; to finance the Main Street 
reconstruction; and to finance the Main Street Water Line replacement project.  Three bids were received: 
 
 Security Bank           1.15 % 
 First Option          1.35 % 
 Great Southern        2.29 % 
 

2



Motion by LaDuex, second by Hunter to approve the resolution which would issue $2,830,000 in temporary 
notes through Security Bank at 1.15%.  Yeas:  All.   
 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
  
 Levee Tractor-Mower Purchase.  City Manager Cawby advised the City has planned in the CIP 
budget for a couple of years to replacing the tractor-mower.  The City requested bids and received the 
following five bids from four dealers: 
 
 Dealer Tractor Mower     
   Greeley Farm Implement TS6120 - $60,000 Landpride RCM3615 - $13,000 
 Heritage Tractor John Deere 6115D - $53,450 JD HX-15 - $14,550 
 Coleman Equipment Kubota M108SDSC - $55,675 Landpride RC5615 - $15,674 
 McConnell Machinery Farm All 115U T4 – $60,511 Bush Hog 2815L - $15,500 
 McConnell Machinery Kubota M110GXDTC - $59,251 Bush Hog 2815L - $15,500  
 
 Staff recommended the Farm All with a couple of options added.  Believe this is the best deal and 
power for the money.  With options the total would be $76,261.  The old tractor will be used at the lake and 
golf course.   The City will seek lease purchase finance in the next 60 days and will seek to keep payments 
around the $10,000 - $12,000 range.  Will seek bids for around 5 to 8 years.  Motion by Maichel, second 
by LaDuex to purchase a new Farm All levee tractor and mower from McConnel Machinery for $76,261 
with the intent to secure a lease purchase within the next sixty days.  Yeas:  All.   

 
 Rural Fire District Contract.  City Manager Cawby advised Council of problems with the Miami 
County #2 Rural Fire District Board.   Two years ago Fire Board gave City a two-year contract and was in 
a hurry for City to sign in order to make all cities in county alike.  City has now offered to approve contract 
with only changes related to firefighter reimbursement and County is now not willing to approve provisions 
they originally offered.  City Manager Cawby advised that Fire Board has a particular issue with reporting 
and variances between our reporting and theirs.  He also advised that the Fire Board did not pay the full 
amount of the $26,000 reimbursement set to them and only paid $10,000.  City Manager Cawby has asked 
Fire Chief Brian Love to check into the cost of the Osawatomie Fire Department separating from the Rural 
Fire Board. 

 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 

 Dickinson:  Public Safety meeting on Monday that he couldn’t attend.  Meeting did not happen 
anyway.   
 

Hunter:  The south lake road is very bad. 
 
Farley – Not enough computers at the library for the programs they have. 
 

 MAYOR’S REPORT: 
 
Note from Larissa Thompson for the Recreations Scholarship.   
 
He will be attending the KLM Summit and Mayors Meeting. 
 

 CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 

3



 Memorial Hall:  The floors have been redone in Memorial Hall and look very nice.  Carpet to be 
done soon.  The City has purchased new plastic banquet tables for the Hall and Auditorium.  Wood ones 
will be sold or thrown away.   
 
 Sports Complex:  The drainage is working and fields are playable when they wouldn’t have been 
last year.  If weather holds, plant to have sod down soon at the complex, but have to finish concrete first. 
 
 Lake Shelter House:  Notified by Dan Macek that we have received two bids for work.  Will meet 
with Dan soon to get the project rolling.  Waiting on an engineered approved plan. 
 
 Lake:  Mike Stiles taking care of the lake in addition to mowing nuisance properties.  He looked 
at boat ramp and it is shot.  Repairs will need to be made right away. 
 
 New Police Department:  Sally port is coming along well.  Hope to be close to done by Alumni 
Weekend. 

 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION – PERSONNEL MATTERS OF NON-ELECTED PERSONNEL.  At 
8:00 p.m., Motion by Farley, second by Maichel to recess into executive session for the purpose of 
discussing personnel matters of non-elected personnel, with City Manager Cawby and City Manager 
Wetzler present; and that the Council reconvene the open meeting in this room at 8:10 p.m.  Yeas:  All.  
Meeting reconvened at 8:10 p.m.  No action taken resulting from the executive session.   
 
 Motion by Hunter, seconded by Dickinson to adjourn.  Yeas:  All.  Meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
             Janine Sullivan, Acting Council Secretary 
 
 
 

 

4



             Osawatomie, Kansas.  May 28, 2015.  The Council meeting was held in Memorial Hall. 
Mayor Govea called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm.  Council members present were Wright, Farley, 
Walmann, LaDuex, Hunter, Dickenson, Hampson, Maichel.  Also present City Manager Cawby, City 
Attorney Dick Wetzler, Acting Council Secretary Sullivan.  Vistors were Garrett Nordstorm and Virginia 
Adams. 
 

INVOCATION.   Rev. Virginia Adams, Community of Christ Church, delivered the invocation. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA.   Motion made by Hunter, seconded by LaDuex to approve the May 14 
Consent Agenda which includes: approval of the May 28 Agenda, approval of the corrected Appropriation 
Ordinance 2015-4, and approval of firework stand permits for Moon’s Fireworks and Eddie’s Fireworks.    
Yeas:  All 
 

PRESENTATIONS.  Rev. Virginia Adams – The Community of Christ Church has been doing the 
Ice Cream Social for over 50 years and they have now partnered with the Presbyterian Church.  The 
Methodist Church will be doing breakfast for children and this will be done so they can go to the Library 
for the lunch program.    
 

COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC:   None 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
  

Resolutions and Contracts for CDBG Grant Application.  City Manager Cawby and Garrett 
Nordstrom of Governmental Assistance Services (GAS) presented information to the City’s application for 
a special round of CDBG grants.  The special round allows applications for sidewalks, recreation and parks 
equipment.  The City has retained GAS to prepare the grant on behalf of the City.  The $385,000 project 
would include paying for sidewalk replacement from 1st to 5th on Main Street, to rehabilitate the City’s 
basketball and tennis courts at the Cole Sports Complex, and to build a shade structure over the playground 
equipment at the Sports Complex.  The City’s portion would be 10%, or $35,000, with $38,500 coming 
from CDBG funds.   

 
Motion by Hunter, second by LaDuex to approve the Resolution for Authority to Apply and 

Commitment to Match the CDBG Grant Application.  Yeas: All.  The Resolution was assigned No. 703.   
 
Motion by Maichel, second by LaDuex, to approve the Resolution of Commitment to the Operaton 

and Maintenance of the CDBG Project.  Yeas: All.  The Resolution was assigned No. 704. 
 
 Motion by LaDuex, second by Hunter to approve the contract with BG Consultants for 37,100 
dollars contingent on the award of the grant.  Yeas:  All.  
 
 Motion by LaDuex, second by Hunter to approve the contract with GAS for grant administration 
in the amount of 20,000 dollars contingent of the award of the grant. 
Yeas:  All. 
 

NEW BUSINESS:   
 
 Appointments.  City Manager advised he talked to Brian King in person about options for 
committee appointments.  Brian advised he would get back him by Friday. 
 
 Update/Workshop on Levee and Flooding.  City Manager advised river crested at 35 feet last 
week.  Bill Roseberry was checking on the hour.  City Manager coordinated with Police Chief Bob Butters, 
Fire Chief Brian Love, Public Works Director Blake Madden, Building Official Ted Bartlett, and Property 

5



Manager Bill Roseberry to talk about emergency operation plans for a potential rise in the river level.  
Preliminary duties were assigned to staff and plans were made to coordinate with the County Emergency 
Management Director and to designate a temporary operations headquarters.  Discussion with Council was 
that the City should consider some additional preparedness awareness for citizens.  Maichel was concerned 
that not enough information was being given to the public and that more information on emergency 
management plans should be provided.   
 
 Update on Rural Fire Negotiations.   City Manager Cawby reported that he, Mayor Govea, and 
Human Resources Officer Ashley Kobe, meet with the Board of the Miami County Rural Fire District at 
their request.  The Rural Fire Board owed the City about $26,000 dollars and they did pay $10,000 dollars.  
After the meeting both parties came to agreement of another approximately $16,000 with about a $300 
dollar difference in figures.  Cawby reported that the County may be willing to take over paying rural 
firefighter salaries.   
 
 Workshop on Vandalism.  City Manager Cawby reported that vandalism continues to occur to 
the bathrooms in John Brown Park.  The City is planning on purchasing moveable cameras for the Sports 
Complex.  Because they are cell phone based, they may be able to move to many different areas around the 
City.  City Manager has been talking to the Police Department to pick up patrol in areas. 
 
 COUNCIL REPORTS:   

 
LaDuex:  Thanked the City Manager for updates to the Council on flood waters.  Thanked Bill 

Roseberry for his hard work. 
 

 Hunter:  Reported that he toured the new Police Department and the Police Department did an 
excellent job on the tour.   
 

Dickinson:  Went to Open House at the new Police Department and was impressed.  Also reported 
that he has lived around the River all of his life and that his family knew to be prepared every spring for 
possible flooding.   

 
 Maichel:  Thought there was going to be more discussion on emergency procedures.  Had list of 
several suggestions on the procedures, but wouldn’t give them here because she was cut off.  Felt 
disrespected and will not “shut up” about flood concerns.  Will discuss list with the City Manager.   
 
 MAYORS REPORT: 
 

Ice Cream Social will be all together this year at the Sports Complex. 
 
This will be Ice Cream and hot dogs with the Band of Oz.  Date will be set later. 

 
 CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  None. 
 
 Motion by Maichel, second by LaDuex to adjourn.  Yeas:  All.   Meeting adjourned.    
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
             Janine Sullivan, Acting Council Secretary 
 
 
 

6



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 1

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF CERTAIN CLAIMS.

Be it ordained by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas

     Section 1.  That in order to pay the claims hereinafter stated which have been properly audited and approved, there is
hereby appropriated out of the respective funds in the city treasury the sum required for each claim.

NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT
NUMBER

City of Osawatomie Petty Cash Reimbursement 1607 3,372.11        
KMEA GRDA Electricity 1608 83,697.74      
KMEA WAPA Electricity 1609 9,883.47        
KMEA SPA Electricity 1610 3,108.95        
Crawford Sales Company Budweiser 45624 123.70           
Visa Tables, Lodging, Computer, 45625 7,449.22        
Kansas Department of Revenue Water Protection & Clean Water Tax 45626 1,017.35        
Miami County Treasurer Property Tax 45627 1,409.04        
Suddenlink Internet 45628 398.75           
Crawford Sales Company Budweiser 45629 280.00           
Amateur Sports Promotion 2015-16 Pocket Schedule 45630 90.00             
Apparatus Services, LLC Rebuilt Valve 45631 366.86           
AT&T RTU'S 45632 221.96           
Atco International Buckaroo, Apocalypse 45633 223.05           
Athco, LLC Repair Scoreboard 45634 900.00           
B.I.C.I. Oxygen Stabilizer 45635 507.25           
Baker & Taylor Books 45636 686.73           
Brewer's Automotive Repair Replace Ball Joints 45637 999.98           
C&G Merchants Supply, Inc. Chips, Candy, Towels, Plates 45638 389.84           
City of Osawatomie Utilities 45639 9,741.64        
Delta Dental of Kansas, Inc. Dental Insurance 45640 2,828.27        
Dish Network Service 45641 105.66           
John Dixon Sound & Stage Deposit-Jamboree 45642 470.00           
Evco Wholesale Food Gatorade, Coffee, Hot Dogs, Gloves 45643 909.61           
Family Center Ratchet Strap, Broom, Adapter, Elbow 45644 872.50           
First Place Trophies Plate & Engraving 45645 10.00             
Hanes Florist Flowers 45646 70.00             
Hasty Awards Plaques 45647 106.25           
HD Supply Waterworks Water Line Project, Hydrant Parts 45648 8,093.43        
Holliday Sand and Gravel Brick Sand 45649 775.05           
Jarred, Gilmore & Phillips, PA 2014 Final Billing-Audit 45650 2,150.00        
John Deere Financial Voltage Regulator 45651 104.59           
John Deere Landscapes Fungicide, Herbicide, Fescue 45652 8,600.44        
K&T Auto Replace Control Arm 45653 834.45           
Kansas City Wilbert Grave Opening 45654 2,560.00        
Kansas Department of Commerce JTC Oil Lease-June 2015 45655 1,000.00        
KS Dept. of Health & Environment Analytical Services 45656 690.00           
Kansas One Call Locates 45657 38.00             
Kansas State Treasurer Training Funds 45658 35.00             
Key Equipment RKR SW, Clamp, Cable 45659 83.96             

Record of Ordinances
ORDINANCE NO. 2015-05

CLAIMANT

May 31, 2015

7



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 2

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER

Kincaid Ready Mix Concrete 45660 7,551.17        
KS Municipal Insurance Trust Workers Compensation 45661 618.00           
L&K Services Refuse, Sludge Haul Off 45662 34,617.19      
Lybarger Oil, Inc. Fuel 45663 4,400.50        
Madden Rental Portable Toilet Rental 45664 690.00           
McConnell Machinery Co., Inc. Belts, Idler Pulley, Sheave 45665 259.26           
Midway Ford Truck Center Cabin Filter 45666 86.96             
Midwest Turf, Inc.,. Solar Protectant 45667 530.00           
National Sign Company Highway Striping Paint 45668 222.78           
NEKLS CD Cases, Media Sleeves 45669 65.50             
Oil Patch Pump & Supply, Inc. Tee, Plug, Lubricant, Nipple 45670 126.30           
Olathe Winwater Works Valve Box, Saddle, Coupling 45671 564.00           
Oldcastle Architectural Top Soil 45672 5,460.00        
Osawatomie Golf Association Membership 45673 2,660.00        
Pace Analytical Services, Inc. Analytical Services 45674 351.00           
Paola Do It Best Hardware Paint Thinner, Finish Nails, Cleanout 45675 73.24             
Pepsi Beverages Company Pop 45676 554.35           
Professional Turf Products, LP Fairway Mower 45677 16,000.00      
Quill Golf Paper, Speakers, Index Cards 45678 64.52             
R&J Trucking Top Soil Delivery 45679 1,625.00        
Reflective Group Service 45680 132.24           
Reinders, Inc. Focus Bentgrass Seed 45681 270.00           
RMI Golf Carts Bolt, Nut, Gasket 45682 101.62           
Rural Water District #1 Service 45683 260.59           
Smitty's Lawn & Garden Discharge Chute, Blade, Cable 45684 84.91             
State Industrial Products All Purpose Cleaner 45685 139.97           
Texoma Golf Tees 45686 238.95           
Void 45687 -                 
UPS Color Copies 45688 87.00             
USA Blue Book Hach Ammonia Salicylate Powder 45689 665.43           
Van Diest Supply Company Biomist 45690 681.50           
Van Wall Equipment Grind Reels, Push Pull 45691 454.87           
Viking Industrial Supply Paper Supplies 45692 232.92           
Wade Quarries Gravel 45693 4,794.49        
Winkler, Domoney & Schultz Municipal Court Judge 45694 2,060.00        
Winterscheid Auto Parts Filters, Brake Pads, Drill, Bulbs 45695 868.69           
Wycoff's Locksmithing Keys 45696 20.00             
Zep Sales Zep 75, Zep 45 45697 119.90           
City of Osawatomie Petty Cash Reimbursement 1611 2,907.52        
Kansas Department of Revenue Sales Tax 1612 588.20           
Kansas Department of Revenue Sales Tax 1613 10,642.93      
Kansas Department of Revenue Compensating Use Tax 1614 514.14           
KMEA Nearman Electricity 1615 18,554.85      
KMEA EMP Electricity 1616 22,368.04      
Void 1617 -                 

CLAIMANT

May 31, 2015

Record of Ordinances

8



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 3

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER

First Option Bank Street Sweeper Loan Payment 1618 12,740.00      
Visa DVD's, Craft Supplies, Pizza, Books 45698 1,364.21        
Crawford Sales Company Budweiser 45699 223.30           
Midwest Distributors Miller 45700 102.15           
Ricoh USA Copies 45701 664.14           
Rod Sipe Summer Reading Performance Fee 45702 271.59           
A-T Solutions, Inc. Software License 45703 219.00           

Alamar Uniforms Equinox Carrier 45704 456.00           
American Equipment Co. Asphalt Tarp 45705 120.77           
Bison Profab, Inc. Pad Mount Enclosure 45706 2,507.88        
Blue Line Learning Group, LLC Internet Training 45707 375.00           
Brenntag Mid-South, Inc. Sodium Hypochlorite, Robinfloc 45708 6,821.46        
Century Link RTU'S 45709 236.56           
Champion Brands, LLC Oil 45710 752.05           
City of Osawatomie Golf Membership-Don Cawby 45711 740.47           
Clinical Reference Laboratory Health Assessment 45712 1,640.00        
Demco Jacket Covers, Book Support 45713 106.68           
Donna & Viola's Shirts Patches 45714 10.00             
Elliott Insurance, Inc. Add Trailer 45715 13.00             
Feld Fire Service Air Compressor 45716 1,501.37        
Galls Trousers, Belt Keepers, Nameplate 45717 258.59           
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. Administration Fee 45718 377.00           
Gerken Rent All Moonwalk, Tractor, Tiller 45719 485.04           
Golden West Industrial Supply Drag Mat 45720 998.63           
Grainger Pilot Light 45721 147.01           
Hach Company Chlorine Reagent 45722 345.17           
Hasty Awards Engraved Plates 45723 3.32               
Hawkins, Inc. Aqua Hawk 45724 1,079.00        
Home Depot Refrigerator, Cedar, Ladder, Shovel 45725 765.63           
Inland Truck Parts Repair Digger Truck 45726 1,661.13        
JCI Industries, Inc. Install Modules 45727 1,240.00        
K&T Auto Replace Front Tires 45728 25.75             
Kansas City Power & Light Service 45729 1,251.86        
Kansas Dept. of Health & Environment Wastewater Operator Certificate 45730 20.00             
Kansas Gas Service Services 45731 970.49           
KC Bobcat Filters 45732 112.65           
Killough Construction, Inc. Asphalt 45733 355.70           
Kriz Davis Co. Wire, Bracket Wraps Clamps 45734 6,161.36        
Michael Mallory Greens Aeration 45735 1,400.00        
Martin Pringle Municipal Matters, City Prosecutor 45736 3,621.50        
Maxim Golf Solutions Consulting Services 45737 2,500.00        
McConnell Machinery Co., Inc. Farmall Tractor & Bush Hog, Key 45738 76,286.61      
Miami County Fire District #1 Emergency Reporting 45739 133.50           
Miami County Health Department TB Skin Test, Hepatitis B 45740 120.00           
Miami County Sheriff's Department Prisoner Care 45741 1,135.53        

Record of Ordinances

May 31, 2015

CLAIMANT

9



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 4

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER

Miami Lumber Lumber, Drill, Spray Paint, Plywood 45742 938.07           
Moon's IGA Cleaning Supplies, Buns, Water 45743 523.24           
NPG Newspapers Treasurer's Report, Release of Funds 45744 492.36           
Oil Patch Pump & Supply Nipple, Coupling, Flange, Pipe, Elbow 45745 323.39           
OMB Guns Holster With Tact Light 45746 248.00           
Print Shoppe Building Inspection Forms 45747 280.00           
Professional Turf Products, LP Workman Utility Vehicle, Bedknife 45748 9,038.60        
Protective Equipment Testing Lab Rubber Glove Testing 45749 381.62           
Psychological Resources Psychological Evaluation 45750 110.00           
R&J Trucking Rock Delivery 45751 228.75           
Reeves-Wiedeman Company Toilet Repair Kit 45752 110.56           
Reflective Group Service, Phones 45753 1,405.03        
Ricoh, USA Copier Lease 45754 280.78           
Ricoh, USA Copier Lease 45755 96.87             
Ricoh, USA Copier Lease 45756 183.90           
Sprint Service 45757 16.58             
Standard & Poor's Cusip Number 45758 170.00           
Suddenlink Internet 45759 59.95             
Superior Lamp Bulbs 45760 837.97           
Superior Vision Vision Insurance 45761 588.70           
Debbie Talley Memorial Hall Janitorial 45762 375.00           
Training @ Your Place Assist Angela With Set Up 45763 285.00           
Unemployment Insurance Services Unemployment Insurance 45764 400.00           
United Healthcare Health Insurance 45765 33,398.61      
University of Kansas Property Room and Evidence Control 45766 230.00           
Walmart Brisket, Pork Loin, Paint, Sawblades 45767 173.41           
Wendt's Construction Construction-Sports Complex 45768 30,000.00      
West Bend Mutual Insurance Company Liquor Liability Insurance 45769 460.00           
Winpro Artisan Embossed Roll Towels 45770 263.20           
ZEP Sales & Service Zep 45 Aero 45771 60.00             
Payroll 05/01/15 87,256.66      
Fica 05/01/15 6,549.42        
Payroll 05/15/15 85,515.17      
Fica 05/15/15 6,055.44        
Payroll 05/29/15 99,284.62      
Fica 05/29/15 7,100.85        
KPERS 24,850.68      

829,406.91    

Record of Ordinances

May 31, 2015

CLAIMANT

10



DATE WARRANTS ISSUED: Page No. 5

 
NATURE OF CLAIM OR SERVICE CLAIM AMOUNT

NUMBER

GO 223,783.46
WTR 57,612.33
EL 209,134.86
EE Ben 69,415.21
Refuse 33,229.67
Lib 965.98
RF 5,441.68
IND 2,165.32
SP&R 1,582.24
ST Imp 13,004.80
B&I 170.00
Sewer 25,283.26
Golf 31,582.29
TRSM 1,249.43
CIP 152,048.67
CIP-ST 203.32
CIP-PD 517.39
CAF 2,017.00

829,406.91

Record of Ordinances

May 31, 2015

CLAIMANT

11



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2015-06-11 SAM - Audit Acceptance   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: June 11, 2015 

AGENDA ITEM: 2014 Audit Presentation 

PRESENTER:  Neil Phillips of Jarred, Gilmore & Phillips, PA 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   Our auditor, Mr. Neil Phillips, will present the results of the 2014 audit.  We 
will have Mr. Phillips present this information to you and he will respond to your questions.   

The audit is required by state statute and is provided to the Kansas Department of 
Administration, Division of Accounts and Reports, for review and filing.  Accounts and Reports 
serves as the state’s official repository of municipal audit reports. 

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and discussion.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Acknowledge receipt and accept the City’s 2014 audit 
from Jarred, Gilmore and Phillips. 

12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 

 

 Independent Auditors’ Report and 
 Financial Statement with 
 Supplementary Information 
 
 
 

 For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 
 

13



CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
 PAGE 
 NUMBER 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report  1-2 
 
Statement 1 
   Summary Statement of Receipts, Expenditures, 
      and Unencumbered Cash- Regulatory Basis 3-4 
 
Notes to the Financial Statement  5-16 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
Schedule 1 
   Summary of Expenditures – Actual and Budget (Budgeted Funds Only) 
      Regulatory Basis  17 
 
Schedule 2 
   Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures – Actual and Budget –Regulatory Basis 
      (with Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year) 
 General Fund  18-20 
 Industrial Fund  21 
 Library Fund  22 
 Recreation Fund  23 
 Recreation Employee Benefits Fund  24 
 Employee Benefits Fund  25 
 Special Parks and Recreation Fund  26 
 Tourism Fund  27 
 911 Fund 28 
 Street Improvement Fund 29 
 Golf Course Fund  30 
 Capital Improvements General Fund 31 
 Capital Improvements Sewer Fund  32 
 Capital Improvements Street Fund  33 
 Capital Improvements Grants Fund  34 
 Public Safety Equipment Fund 35 
 General Obligation Bond and Interest Fund 36 
 Electric Utility Fund  37-38 
 Water Utility Fund 39 
 Refuse Utility Fund 40 
 Sewer Utility Fund 41 
 
Schedule 3 
   Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements – 
  Agency Funds - Regulatory Basis  42 
 
 

14



JARRED, GILMORE & PHILLIPS, PA 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

- 1 - 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Osawatomie, Kansas 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying fund summary statement of regulatory basis receipts, 
expenditures, and unencumbered cash balances of City of Osawatomie, Kansas, a municipality, as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statement. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in 
accordance with the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide as described in Note 1 to meet 
the financial reporting requirements of the State of Kansas. Management is also responsible for the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statement based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, and the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. Those standards require we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is free 
of material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statement. The procedures selected depend on auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statement. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Basis for Adverse Opinion on U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
As described in Note 1 of the financial statement, the financial statement is prepared by the City of 
Osawatomie, Kansas to meet the requirements of the State of Kansas on the basis of the financial 
reporting provisions of the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide, which is a basis of 
accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
The effects on the financial statement of the variances between the regulatory basis of accounting 
described in Note 1 and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
although not reasonably determinable, are presumed to be material. 

15



 

- 2 - 

Adverse Opinion on U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion 
on U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” paragraph, the financial statement referred to 
above does not present fairly, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the financial position of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas as of December 
31, 2014, or  changes in financial position and  cash flows thereof for the year then ended. 
 
Opinion on Regulatory Basis of Accounting 
In our opinion, the financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the 
aggregate cash and unencumbered cash balance of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas as of December 
31, 2014, and the aggregate receipts and expenditures for the year then ended in accordance with 
the financial reporting provisions of the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide described in 
Note 1. 
 
Report on Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the fund summary statement of 
regulatory basis receipts, expenditures, and unencumbered cash balances (basic financial statement) 
as a whole. The summary of regulatory basis expenditures-actual and budget, individual fund 
schedules of regulatory basis receipts and expenditures-actual and budget, schedule of regulatory 
basis receipts and disbursements-agency funds (Schedules 1, 2 and 3 as listed in the table of 
contents) are presented for analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statement, 
however, are required to be presented under the provisions of the Kansas Municipal Audit and 
Accounting Guide. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statement. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statement and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statement or to the basic financial statement itself, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statement as a whole, on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.  
 
The 2013 Actual column presented in the individual fund schedules of regulatory basis receipts and 
expenditures – actual and budget (Schedule 2 as listed in the table of contents) is also presented for 
comparative analysis and is not a required part of the 2014 basic financial statement upon which we 
rendered an unmodified opinion dated April 17, 2014.  The 2013 basic financial statement and our 
accompanying report are not presented herein, but are available in electronic form from the web site 
of the Kansas Department of Administration at the following link http://da.ks.gov/ar/muniserv/.  
Such 2013 comparative information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2013 basic 
financial statement.  The 2013 comparative information was subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the 2013 basic financial statement and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the 2013 basic financial statement or to the 2013 basic financial 
statement itself, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 2013 comparative information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the 2013 basic financial statement as a whole, on the 
basis of accounting described in Note 1. 

      
 JARRED, GILMORE & PHILLIPS, PA 
 Certified Public Accountants 
 
April 30, 2015 
Chanute, Kansas 
 

16



April 30, 2015 
 
Jarred, Gilmore & Phillips, PA 
P.O. Box 779 
Chanute, Kansas  66720 
 
Dear Ladies & Gentlemen: 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statement of City of 
Osawatomie, Kansas, as of December 31, 2014, the cash and unencumbered cash balance of the fund of 
the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, and cash received and expenditures paid of such fund for the year ended, 
taken as a whole, in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Kansas Municipal Audit and 
Accounting Guide for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statement, for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statement is presented fairly, in all material respects, 
in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. 
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable 
person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An 
omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of 
qualitative factors. 
 
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of April 30, 2015, the following representations 
made to you during your audit. 
 
Financial Statement 
 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated 
August 6, 2014, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statement and for preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable 
criteria. 

 
2) The financial statement referred to above is fairly presented in conformity with the financial 

reporting provisions of the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. 
 
3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 

control to prevent and detect fraud. 
 
5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair 

value, are reasonable. 
 
6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, 

transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to 
related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed. 

 
7) Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance, 

subsequent to the date of the financial statement that would require adjustment to or disclosure in 
the financial statement. 

 
 

17



8) We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted 
claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements, and 
we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments. 

 
9) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is contingently liable, if any, have been 

properly recorded or disclosed. 
 
 

Information Provided 
 

10) We have provided you with: 
 

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statement, such as records, documentation, and other matters. 

 
b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 
 
c) Unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 

audit evidence. 
 
d) Minutes of the meetings of City Council or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which 

minutes have not yet been prepared. 
 

11) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statement. 

 
12) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statement may 

be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 
13) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the City Council and involves: 
 

a) Management, 
 

b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 
 

c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statement. 
 

14) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the City’s financial 
statement communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 

 
15) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions 

of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered 
when preparing financial statement. 

 
16) We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted 

claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements, and 
we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments. 

 
17) We have disclosed to you the identity of the City’s related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 

 
 
 
  

18



Government—specific 
 

18) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 

 
19) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related 

to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 
 
20) The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of 

assets, liabilities, or unencumbered cash. 
 
21) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 

agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and legal and 
contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

 
22) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to have 

occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we believe have 
a material effect on the financial statement or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, 
and any other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance. 

 
23) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to have 

occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have 
a material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data 
significant to the audit objectives. 

 
24) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have 

occurred, of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statement or 
other financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

 
25) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including 

those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered 
for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for 
reporting on noncompliance. 

 
26) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statement and related notes. 

We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including that we 
assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual, who 
possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the 
services performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, 
approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statement and related notes. 

 
27) The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such 

assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 
 
28) The City has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect 

on the financial statement in the event of noncompliance. 
 
29) The financial statement properly classifies all funds and activities. 
 
30) Expenditures have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 

financial statement, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 
 
31) Receipts are appropriately classified in the financial statement in accordance with the financial 

reporting provisions of the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. 
 

19



32) Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and 
are properly disclosed. 

33) We acknowledge our responsibility for the regulatory required supplementary information (RSI). 
The RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement 
and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you 
any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of 
the RSI. 

 
34) With respect to the Summary of Expenditures – actual and budget, regulatory basis (budgeted 

funds only), Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures – actual and budget for each individual fund, 
regulatory basis, and Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements – agency funds. 

 
a) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the Summary of Expenditures – actual and 

budget, regulatory basis (budgeted funds only), Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures – actual 
and budget for each individual fund, regulatory basis, and Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements 
– agency funds, regulatory basis in accordance with the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting 
Guide, and we believe the Summary of Expenditures – actual and budget, regulatory basis 
(budgeted funds only), Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures – actual and budget for each 
individual fund, regulatory basis, and Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements – agency funds, 
regulatory basis, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the Kansas 
Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. The methods of measurement and presentation of the 
Summary of Expenditures – actual and budget, regulatory basis (budgeted funds only), Schedule 
of Receipts and Expenditures – actual and budget for each individual fund, regulatory basis, and 
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements – agency funds, regulatory basis, have not changed from 
those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 

 
b) If the Summary of Expenditures – actual and budget, regulatory basis (budgeted funds only), 

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures – actual and budget for each individual fund, regulatory 
basis, and Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements – agency funds is not presented with the 
audited financial statement, we will make the audited financial statement readily available to the 
intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary 
information and the auditors’ report thereon. 
 

 

Signed:       Signed:       
 
Title:  Mayor   Title:  City Clerk    

 

Signed:       Signed:       
 
Title:  City Manager   Title:  City Treasurer    

 

 

20



 

Add
Beginning Ending Encumbrances Cash Balance

Unencumbered  Unencumbered and Accounts December 31, 
Funds Cash Balances Receipts Expenditures Cash Balances Payable 2014

General Fund 202,578.56$           2,294,991.05$        2,263,497.69$        234,071.92$           75,496.01$          309,567.93$          
Special Purpose Funds:  
   Industrial 35,121.46                45,404.60               30,545.58               49,980.48               -                       49,980.48              
   Library 98,394.18                13,646.32               9,986.49                 102,054.01             -                       102,054.01            
   Recreation -                          4,050.99                 783.00                    3,267.99                 -                       3,267.99                
   Recreation Employee Benefits -                          501.66                    80.00                      421.66                    -                       421.66                   
   Employee Benefits 20,523.22                702,672.58             615,497.36             107,698.44             3,336.36              111,034.80            
   Special Parks and Recreation 88,220.50               221,190.83             218,589.79             90,821.54               4,191.64              95,013.18              
   Tourism 7,979.00                  62,225.36               44,639.98               25,564.38               513.50                 26,077.88              
    911 9,897.41                  -                          -                         9,897.41                 -                       9,897.41                
   Street Improvement 122,076.34             118,657.13             113,547.61             127,185.86             1,085.60              128,271.46            
   Golf Course 26,038.37               231,995.31             251,671.59             6,362.09                 2,983.62              9,345.71                
   Capital Improvements General 210,479.32              175,900.00             158,960.80             227,418.52             12,219.42            239,637.94            
   Capital Improvements Sewer (301,209.31)             1,030,669.00          869,331.31             (139,871.62)            66,273.13            (73,598.49)             
   Capital Improvements Street 19,158.54                99,964.26               53,144.19               65,978.61               -                       65,978.61              
   Capital Improvements Grant 260,004.80              643,854.09             651,809.01             252,049.88             249.99                 252,299.87            
   Public Safety Equipment 9,068.46                  2,203.87                 7,568.10                 3,704.23                 -                       3,704.23                
Bond and Interest Fund:
  General Obligation Bond and Interest 88,616.74                784,510.17             753,495.00             119,631.91             -                       119,631.91            
Business Funds:
   Electric Utility 420,356.80             3,976,776.27          3,865,267.71          531,865.36             230,451.60          762,316.96            
   Water Utility 206,189.85              818,324.52             902,222.33             122,292.04             15,065.39            137,357.43            
   Refuse Utility 5,510.67                 393,283.47             378,807.86             19,986.28               32,559.41            52,545.69              
   Sewer Utility 383,947.55             821,382.95             847,921.19             357,409.31             11,622.15            369,031.46            
Total Reporting Entity (Excluding 
                                   Agency Funds) 1,912,952.46$         12,442,204.43$      12,037,366.59$      2,317,790.30$        456,047.82$        2,773,838.12$       

Statement 1
CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

Summary Statement of Receipts, Expenditures, and Unencumbered Cash

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 3 -

The notes to the financial statement are
an integral part of this statement.

Regulatory Basis

21



2014

Total Cash to be accounted for: 2,773,838.12$          

 
Composition of Cash:
    Cash on Hand …………………………………………………… 640.00$                    
  Checking Accounts:
    Operating Account ……………………………………………… 579,987.29               
    Cash Flow Account ……………………………………………… 1,673,840.86            
    Petty Cash ………………………………………………………… 2,000.00                   
    Grant Account…………………………………………………… 252,049.88               
    Street & Sewer Project…………………………………………… (73,893.01)                
    ADSAP ……………………………………………………………… 7,401.00                   
    Municipal Court ………………………………………………… 7,249.54                   
    Police Forfeitures………………………………………………… 1,153.42                   
    Paypal Donations Account……………………………………… 0.01                          
    Cafeteria 125 Checking………………………………………… 26,578.57                 
  Investments:
    Kansas Municipal Investment Pool…………………………… 0.42                          
    Certificates of Deposit ………………………………………… 428,359.19               

Total Reporting Entity 2,905,367.17            
  Agency Funds Per Schedule 3 (131,529.05)              
Total Reporting Entity (Excluding

 Agency Funds) 2,773,838.12$          

- 4 -

Statement 1 (Continued)
CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

Summary Statement of Receipts, Expenditures, and Unencumbered Cash

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

The notes to the financial statement are
an integral part of this statement.

Regulatory Basis

22



 

- 5 - 

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 
 

Notes to the Financial Statement 
December 31, 2014 

 
 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The financial statement and schedules of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas have been prepared 
in order to show compliance with the cash basis and budget laws of the State of Kansas.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the principal standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant 
of the City’s accounting policies follow.  Note 1 describes how the City’s accounting policies 
differ from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Financial Reporting Entity 
The City of Osawatomie, Kansas (the City) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 
eight-member council.  These financial statements present the City of Osawatomie, Kansas 
(the primary government). 
 
Related Municipal Entities:  A related municipal entity is determined by the following criteria.  
Whether the City exercises oversight responsibility on financial interdependency, selection of 
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations 
and accountability for fiscal matters, scope of the public service, and significant operational or 
financial relationships with the City.  Related municipal entities are not required to be 
included in the City’s audit by the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide (KMAAG). 
Based upon the application of this criterion, the following is a brief review of potential related 
municipal entities: 
 

The Osawatomie Housing Authority – The Osawatomie Housing Authority 
operates the City’s housing projects.  The Osawatomie Housing Authority can 
sue and be sued, and can buy, sell, or lease real property.  Bond ordinances 
must be approved by the City.  The Osawatomie Housing Authority’s financial 
statements should be included with the City’s financial statements. However, 
the statements are omitted in an apparent departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Separate 
financial statements are prepared and are available at the Osawatomie Housing 
Authority. The Osawatomie Housing Authority is considered a major 
component unit.  

 
Regulatory Basis Fund Types 
A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of 
accounts recording cash and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities 
and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the 
purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with 
special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.  The following types of funds comprise the 
financial activities of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, for the year of 2014: 
 

General fund – the chief operating fund.  Used to account for all resources except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Special Purpose fund – used to account for the proceeds of specific tax levies and other 
specific revenue sources (other than Capital Project and tax levies for long-term debt) 
that are intended for specified purposes.  
 
Business fund – funds financed in whole or in part by fees charged to users of 
the goods or services (i.e. enterprise and internal service fund etc.) 

23



 

- 6 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Regulatory Basis Fund Types (Continued) 
 
 

Bond and Interest fund – used to account for the accumulation of resources, including 
tax levies, transfers from other funds and payment of general long-term debt. 

 
Capital Project fund – used to account for the debt proceeds and other financial 
resources to be used for acquisition or construction of major capital facilities or 
equipment. 
 
Agency fund – funds used to report assets held by the municipal reporting entity in a 
purely custodial capacity (payroll clearing fund, county treasurer tax collection account, 
etc.). 

 
Basis of Presentation – Regulatory Basis of Accounting 
Regulatory Basis of Accounting and Departure from Accounting Principles Generally Accepted 
in the United States of America. The (KMAAG) regulatory basis of accounting involves the 
recognition of cash, cash equivalents, marketable investments, and certain accounts 
payable and encumbrance obligations to arrive at a net unencumbered cash and 
investments balance on a regulatory basis for each fund, and the reporting of changes in 
unencumbered cash and investments of a fund resulting from the difference in regulatory 
basis revenues and regulatory basis expenditures for the fiscal year. All recognized assets 
and liabilities are measured and reported at cost, unless they have been permanently 
impaired and have no future cash value or represent no future obligation against cash. The 
KMAAG regulatory basis does not recognize capital assets, long-term debt, accrued 
receivables and payables, or any other assets, liabilities or deferred inflows or outflows, 
other than those mentioned above. 
 
The municipality has approved a resolution that is in compliance with K.S.A. 75-1120a(c), 
waiving the requirement for application of generally accepted accounting principles and 
allowing the municipality to use the regulatory basis of accounting. 
 
Pension Plan 
Substantially all full-time City employees are members of the State of Kansas Public 
Employees Retirement System, which is a multi-employer state-wide pension plan.  The City's 
policy is to fund all pension costs accrued.  Such costs to be funded are actuarially 
determined annually by the State of Kansas. 
 
Property Taxes 
In accordance with governing state statutes, property taxes levied during the current year 
are a revenue source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year.  Taxes are 
assessed on a calendar year basis and become a lien on the property on November 1st of 
each year.  The County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within the 
County.  Property owners have the option of paying one-half or the full amount of taxes 
levied on or before December 20 during the year levied with the balance to be paid on or 
before May 10 of the ensuing year.  State statutes prohibit the County Treasurer from 
distributing taxes collected in the year levied prior to January 1st of the ensuing year.  
Consequently, for revenue recognition purposes, taxes levied during the current year are not 
due and receivable until the ensuing year.  At December 31, such taxes are a lien on the 
property. 

24



 

- 7 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Reimbursed Expenses 
K.S.A. 79-2934 provides that reimbursed expenditures, in excess of those budgeted, should be 
recorded as reductions in expenditures rather than as cash receipts.  In the financial 
statement and budget comparison schedules presented in this report, reimbursements and 
refunds are recorded as cash receipts.  The reimbursements are recorded as cash receipts 
when received by the City Treasurer and are often difficult to identify the exact expenditure 
which they are reimbursing.  In funds showing expenditures in excess of the original adopted 
budget, reimbursements are added to the adopted budget as budget credits for comparison 
with the actual expenditures. 
 
Special Assessments  
Kansas statutes require projects financed in part by special assessments to be financed 
through the issuance of general obligation bonds which are secured by the full faith and 
credit of the City.  Special assessments paid prior to the issuance of general obligation 
bonds are recorded as cash receipts in the appropriate project.  Special assessments 
received after the issuance of general obligation bonds are recorded as cash receipts in the 
bond and interest fund.  Further, state statutes require levying additional general ad 
valorem property taxes in the City bond and interest fund to finance delinquent special 
assessments receivable. 
 
Budgetary Information 
Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the general 
fund, special purpose funds (unless specifically exempted by statute), bond and interest 
funds, and business funds. Although directory rather than mandatory, the statutes provide 
for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating 
budget: 

 
 1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before 

August 1st. 
 2. Publication in local newspaper on or before August 5th of the proposed 

budget and notice of public hearing on the budget. 
 3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least ten days after 

publication of notice of hearing. 
 4.  Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th. 
 

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for 
previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this, 
a notice of public hearing to amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At 
least ten days after publication the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend 
the budget at that time. During the year ended December 31, 2014 the City did not amend 
any funds. 

 
The statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual 
fund. However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of the 
adopted budget of expenditures of individual funds. Budget comparison schedules are 
presented for each fund showing actual receipts and expenditures compared to legally 
budgeted receipts and expenditures. 
 
All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the regulatory basis of accounting, in 
which, revenues are recognized when cash is received and expenditures include 
disbursements, accounts payable, and encumbrances, with disbursements being adjusted 
for prior year’s accounts payable and encumbrances.  Encumbrances are commitments by 
the municipality for future payments and are supported by a document evidencing the 
commitment, such as a purchase order or contract. Any unused budgeted expenditure 
authority lapses at year-end. 

25



 

- 8 - 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
A legal operating budget is not required for capital project funds, trust funds, and the 
following special purpose funds: 
 

Capital Improvements General 
 

Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget requirement is 
controlled by federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of internal spending limits 
established by the governing body. 
 
 

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY  
 
Compliance with Kansas Statutes 
Statement 1 and Schedule 1 have been prepared in order to show compliance with the cash 
basis and budget laws of Kansas.  As shown in Statement 1, the City was in apparent violation 
of K.S.A. 10-1,113. The City has obligated expenditures in excess of available monies in the 
Capital Improvements Sewer Fund, however, K.S.A 10-1,116 provides that under certain 
situations, the fund can end the year with a negative unencumbered cash balance and 
therefore, exempt from the cash basis laws of Kansas. The Capital Improvements Sewer Fund 
met the criteria under the statutes and therefore, is not deemed to be in violation of the 
Kansas cash basis laws. As shown in Schedule 1, the City was in compliance with the budget 
laws of Kansas. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2014 the City was in apparent violation of K.S.A. 10-130, 
as remittance of funds to the State treasurer for bonds was late. 
 
 

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
As of December 31, 2014, the City had the following investments and maturities. 
 
  Investment Type   Fair Value   Less than 1   1-2   Rating  
 
 Kansas Investment Pool  $  0.42 $ 0.42 $ - -   S&P AAAf/S1+ 
  
K.S.A 9-1401 establishes the depositories which may be used by the City. The statute requires 
banks eligible to hold the City’s funds have a main branch or branch bank in the county in 
which the City is located, or in an adjoining county if such institution has been designated as 
an official depository, and the banks provide an acceptable rate of return on funds. In 
addition, K.S.A. 9-1402 requires the banks to pledge securities for deposits in excess of FDIC 
coverage. The City has no other policies that would further limit interest rate risk. 
 
K.S.A 12-1675 limits the City’s investment of idle funds to time deposits, open accounts, and 
certificates of deposit with allowable financial institutions; U.S. Government securities; 
temporary notes; no-fund warrants; repurchase agreements; and the Kansas Municipal 
Investment Pool. The City has no investment policy that would further limit its investment 
choices. The rating of the City’s investments is noted above. 
 

26



 

- 9 - 

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Concentration of credit risk. State statutes place no limit on the amount the City may invest in 
any one issuer as long as the investments are adequately secured under K.S.A. 9-1402 and 9-
1405. The City’s allocation of investments as of December 31, 2014, is as follows: 
     
    Percentage of 
  Investments   Investments  
 Kansas Investment Pool   100% 
 
Custodial credit risk – deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. State statutes require the City’s deposits 
in financial institutions to be entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral 
held under a joint custody receipt issued by a bank within the State of Kansas, the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Kansas City, or the Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka. All deposits were 
legally secured at December 31, 2014. 
 
Deposits: At year-end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $2,904,726.75 and the bank 
balance was $2,983,006.38. The bank balance was held by two banks resulting in a 
concentration of credit risk. Of the bank balance, $500,000.00 was covered by FDIC insurance 
and $2,483,006.38 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institutions’ agents in the City’s name. 
 
Custodial credit risk – investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of the issuer or counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its 
investments to be adequately secured. 
 
At December 31, 2014, the City has invested $0.42 in the State’s municipal investment 
pool. The municipal investment pool is under the oversight of the Pooled Money Investment 
Board. The board comprised of the State Treasurer and four additional members appointed 
by the State Governor.  The board reports annually to the Kansas Legislature. State pooled 
monies may by invested in direct obligation that are insured as to principal and interest, by 
the U.S. government or any agency thereof, with maturities of up to four years. No more 
than ten percent of those funds may be invested in mortgage-backed securities. In addition 
the State pool may invest in repurchase agreements with Kansas banks or with primary 
government securities dealers. 

 
 

27



4. LONG-TERM DEBT
    Changes in long-term debt for the City for the year ended December 31, 2014, were as follows:

Original  Date of   Balance    Balance  
Interest Date of   Amount   Final    Beginning    Reductions/    End of  Interest 

  Issue  Rates Issue   of Issue   Maturity   of Year    Additions    Payments    Year  Paid

  General Obligation Bonds  
   Paid by Tax Levies:
    Series 2008B - Streets 4.1-5.5% 10/15/2008 2,435,000.00$    9/1/2028 2,120,000.00$     -$                    (80,000.00)$         2,040,000.00$     95,465.00$          
    Series 2013 - Temporary 1.85% 9/30/2013 590,000.00        9/30/2014 590,000.00          -                      (590,000.00)         -                      10,035.74            
    Series 2014 - Temporary 1.00% 8/28/2014 700,000.00        10/1/2015 -                      700,000.00          -                      700,000.00          -                      
   Paid by Utility Receipts:
    Series 2008A - Sewer 4.50% 10/28/2008 3,550,000.00     10/28/2048 3,374,000.00       -                      (42,000.00)           3,332,000.00       151,830.00          
    Series 2012A - Refunding 2.00-4.70% 5/1/2012 2,810,000.00     9/1/2027 2,310,000.00       -                      (335,000.00)         1,975,000.00       49,200.00            
  State Revolving Loans
    KDHE No. 1961-01 2.83% 11/20/2013 1,273,000.00     9/1/2029 -                      1,030,669.00       -                      1,030,669.00       8,088.41              
  Capital Leases
    Golf Course Irrigation 3.25% 11/26/2006 195,525.75        10/1/2021 119,865.69          -                      (13,340.58)           106,525.11          3,949.74              
    Street Sweeper 3.10% 12/23/2013 95,250.00          12/1/2017 95,250.00            -                      (22,846.77)           72,403.23            2,633.23              

  Total Contractual Indebtedness 8,609,115.69$     1,730,669.00$     (1,083,187.35)$    9,256,597.34$     321,202.12$        

  - 10 -

28



4. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
    Current maturities of long-term debt and interest for the next five years and in five year increments through maturity is as follows:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020-2024 2025-2029 2030-2034 2035-2039 2040-2044 2045-2049 Less Proceeds Total
Issue Not Drawn Down

Principal
  General Obligation Bonds  
   Paid by Tax Levies:
    Series 2008B 75,000.00$      80,000.00$      85,000.00$      90,000.00$      140,000.00$    795,000.00$    775,000.00$    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                2,040,000.00$   
    Series 2014 700,000.00      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  700,000.00       
   Paid by Utility Receipts:
    Series 2008A 43,000.00        45,000.00        48,000.00        49,000.00        52,000.00        296,000.00      369,000.00      456,000.00      570,000.00      710,000.00      694,000.00      -                  3,332,000.00     
    Series 2012A 350,000.00      355,000.00      260,000.00      270,000.00      230,000.00      385,000.00      125,000.00      -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  1,975,000.00     
  State Revolving Loans
    KDHE No. 1961-01 4,002.21          4,116.28          29,233.60        55,420.50        57,000.01        511,102.71      612,124.69      -                  -                  -                  -                  (242,331.00)     1,030,669.00     
  Capital Leases
    Golf Course Irrigation 13,780.17        14,225.87        14,703.01        15,187.49        15,687.94        32,940.63        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  106,525.11       
    Street Sweeper 23,387.21        24,123.77        24,892.25        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  72,403.23         

Total Principal Payments 1,209,169.59   522,465.92      461,828.86      479,607.99      494,687.95      2,020,043.34   1,881,124.69   456,000.00      570,000.00      710,000.00      694,000.00      (242,331.00)     9,256,597.34     

Interest
  General Obligation Bonds  
   Paid by Tax Levies:
    Series 2008B 92,265.00        87,515.00        83,515.00        79,690.00        76,000.00        286,445.00      92,520.00        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  797,950.00       
    Series 2013 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   
   Paid by Utility Receipts:
    Series 2008A 149,940.00      148,005.00      145,980.00      143,820.00      141,615.00      670,905.00      597,960.00      507,600.00      395,145.00      254,835.00      79,785.00        -                  3,235,590.00     
    Series 2012A 42,500.00        35,500.00        28,400.00        23,200.00        17,800.00        45,262.50        7,650.00          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  200,312.50       
  State Revolving Loans
    KDHE No. 1961-01 35,997.79        35,883.72        35,766.40        34,579.50        32,999.99        128,587.68      48,642.41        
  Capital Leases
    Golf Course Irrigation 3,510.15          3,064.45          2,587.31          2,102.83          1,602.38          1,640.01          -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  14,507.13         
    Street Sweeper 2,092.79          1,356.23          587.75             -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  4,036.77           

Total Interest Payments 326,305.73      311,324.40      296,836.46      283,392.33      270,017.37      1,132,840.19   746,772.41      507,600.00      395,145.00      254,835.00      79,785.00        -                  4,252,396.40     

Total Principal and Interest 1,535,475.32$ 833,790.32$    758,665.32$    763,000.32$    764,705.32$    3,152,883.53$ 2,627,897.10$ 963,600.00$    965,145.00$    964,835.00$    773,785.00$    (242,331.00)$   13,508,993.74$ 

- 11 -

29



 

- 12 - 

5. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 

The City has entered into a capital lease agreement in order to finance the acquisition of a 
Golf Course Irrigation System. Payments are made yearly, including interest at 
approximately 3.25%. Final maturity of the lease is October 1, 2021. Future minimum 
lease payments are as follows: 
       
  Year Ended December 31   Totals  
  2015  $ 17,290.32 
  2016   17,290.32 
  2017   17,290.32 
  2018   17,290.32 
  2019   17,290.32 
  2019-2021   34,580.64 
     121,032.24 
 Less imputed interest   (14,507.13) 
 Net Present Value of Minimum 
    Lease Payments   106,525.11 

  Less: Current Maturities  (13,780.17) 
 Long-Term Capital Lease Obligations $ 92,744.94 
 
 
The City has entered into a capital lease agreement in order to finance the acquisition of a 
street sweeper. Payments are made semi-annually, including interest at approximately 
3.10%. Final maturity of the lease is December 1, 2017. Future minimum lease payments 
are as follows: 
       
  Year Ended December 31   Totals  
  2015  $ 25,480.00 
  2016   25,480.00 
  2017   25,480.00 
     76,440.00 
 Less imputed interest   (4,036.77) 
 Net Present Value of Minimum 
    Lease Payments   72,403.23 

  Less: Current Maturities  (23,387.21) 
 Long-Term Capital Lease Obligations $ 49,016.02 
 

 
 
6. OPERATING LEASES 
 

As of December 31, 2014 the City has entered into a number of operating leases for 
equipment.  Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2014, was $12,602.01. Under 
the current lease agreements, the future minimum rental payments are as follows: 

 
  2015 $ 5,576.16 
  2016  5,024.46 
  2017  3,369.36 
  2018  3,369.36 
  2019  1,403.90 
 

 

30



 

- 13 - 

7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan description. The City participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System 
(KPERS). KPERS is part of a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
as provided by Kansas law. KPERS provide retirement benefits, life insurance, disability 
income benefits, and death benefits. Kansas law establishes and amends benefit provisions. 
KPERS issue a publicly available financial report (only one is issued) that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. Those reports may be obtained by 
writing to KPERS (611 South Kansas, Suite 100, Topeka, KS 66603) or by calling 1-888-
275-5737. 
 
Funding Policy. K.S.A. 74-4919 and K.S.A. 74-49,210 establishes the KPERS member-
employee contribution rates. Effective July 1, 2009, KPERS has two benefit structures and 
funding depends on whether the employee is a Tier 1 or Tier 2 member. Tier 1 members are 
active and contributing members hired before July 1, 2009. Tier 2 members were first 
employed in a covered position on or after July 1, 2009. Kansas law establishes the KPERS 
member-employee contribution rate at 5% of covered salary for Tier 1 members and at 6% 
of covered salary for Tier 2 members. The employer collects and remits member-employee 
contributions according to the provisions of Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Kansas law provides that employer contribution rates be determined annually based on the 
results of an annual actuarial valuation. KPERS is funded on an actuarial reserve basis. 
Kansas law sets a limitation on annual increases in the employer contribution rates. The 
City’s employer contribution to KPERS for the year ending December 31, 2014 was 
$209,332.48 equal to the statutory required contributions for the years. 
 

 
 
8. CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 

The following is a summary of capital project authorizations and expenditures to date: 
              
 EXPENDED ESTIMATED 
 PROJECT NAME   AUTHORIZED   THRU 12/31/14 COMPLETION
  
Sewer Project   $ 1,273,000.00 $ 1,162,452.21 Spring 2015 
Police Renovation    495,000.00  381,761.48 Fall 2015 
Relay Switch at Power Plant   45,000.00  30,381.00 Summer 2015 
LMI Survey    30,000.00  13,142.00 Fall 2015 
Main Street Reconstruction   1,420,000.00  33,985.66 Winter 2015 
Main Street Water Lines   1,225,000.00  101,075.00 Fall 2015 
John Brown Garage    10,000.00  2,765.00 Complete 
 
 

9. OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS FROM OPERATIONS 
 

Compensated Absences: 
All full-time employees of the City are eligible for vacation benefits in varying annual amounts.  
Full time employees will be granted paid vacation time according to the following schedules: 
 
 Years Continuous Employment:  Days Granted per Year:  Maximum Days Accrued: 
  Less than 5 years  12 Days  20 Days 
  After 5 but less than 10  15 Days  25 Days 
  After 10 but less than 15  18 Days  30 Days 
  More than 15 years  21 Days  30 Days 
 

31



 

- 14 - 

9. OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS FROM OPERATIONS (Continued) 
 
No vacation time may be taken by an employee until they have been in the service of the City 
continuously for a period of six months. In the event of termination, an employee will be 
compensated for unused vacation leave, provided they have been in the service of the City for 
at least six full months. 
 
Sick leave accrues to all full-time employees at the rate of 8 hours per month to a maximum of 
960 hours. All employees shall receive their sick leave credit on the last payroll of the month. 
Employees who terminate by other than retirement will not be paid for accumulated sick 
leave. Upon retirement 30 days of remaining sick leave will be paid at their hourly rate, 
provided the employee has accrued 960 hours and provided one year notice to the City of their 
intent to retire. 

 
The City determines a liability for compensated absences and compensatory time when the 
following conditions are met: 
 

1. The City's obligation relating to employees’ rights to receive compensation for 
future absences is attributable to employees' services already rendered. 

2. The obligation relates to rights that vest or accumulate. 
3. Payment of the compensation is probable. 
4. The amount can be reasonably estimated. 

 
In accordance with the above criteria, the City has estimated a liability for vacation pay and 
compensatory time, which has been earned, but not taken by City employees.  The liability for 
compensated absences and compensatory time was $279,040.79. In accordance with the 
above criteria, the City has not recorded a liability for sick pay, inasmuch as the amount 
cannot be reasonably estimated. 

 
Other Post Employment Benefits: 
As provided by K.S.A. 12-5040, the local government allows retirees to participate in the group 
health insurance plan. While each retiree pays the full amount of the applicable premium, 
except as disclosed below, conceptually, the City is subsidizing the retirees because each 
participant is charged a level of premium regardless of age. However, the cost of this subsidy 
has not been quantified in these financial statements. 
 
Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City makes health 
care benefits available to eligible former employees and eligible dependents. Certain 
requirements are outlined by the Federal government for this coverage. The premium is paid 
in full by the insured. There is no cost to the City under this program. 
 
Early Retirement Incentive: 
The City offered an early retirement incentive program to certain eligible employees. The early 
retirement incentive was offered in 2011 and accepted in 2012 to reduce expenditures for 
2012 and 2013.  The original goal for the program was three retirees, reducing expenditures 
by an estimated $100,000 for 2012 and $200,000 for 2013.  The incentive was offered to all 
retirement eligible employees for a limited period in late 2011.  As of December 31, 2014, only 
two employees accepted the incentive and both were altered slightly from the original offer to 
match individual circumstances.  One position was provided 3 years of single health 
insurance provided with 100% of the premium covered by the City.  Another position covered 
the employee and spouse at 70%, with some provisions for coverage of the spouse until age 
65. Amounts paid on behalf of employees for the year ended December 31, 2014 was 
$7,289.64.  Future obligations are as follows: 
 
 2015 $  6,289.12 

32



 

- 15 - 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employees’ health and life; and natural 
disasters.  The City manages these risks of loss through the purchase of various insurance 
policies. 
 
The City has been unable to obtain workers’ compensation insurance at a cost it considers to 
be economically justifiable. For this reason, the City has joined together with other cities in the 
State to participate in Kansas Municipal Insurance Trust (KMIT), a public entity risk pool 
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for participating 
members. The City pays annual premium to KMIT for its workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage. The agreement to participate provides that KMIT will be self-sustaining through 
member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of a 
stated dollar amount for each insurance event. Additional premiums may be due if total 
claims for the pool are different than what has been anticipated by KMIT management. 

 
 
12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK 
 

 The City provides water to two rural water districts.  During 2014, sales to Rural Water 
District No. 1 accounted for 11.08% of the water sold and sales to Rural Water District No. 
3 accounted for 28.58% of the water sold.  Risk of accounting loss exists from the 
possibility that a customer would no longer purchase water from the City.  Impact of 
potential risk cannot be determined.   

 
 
13. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

 
Operating transfers were as follows: 
 
  From Fund:   To Fund:  Statutory Authority   Amount  
 Electric Utility  General     K.S.A. 12-825d   $ 323,806.00 

  Sewer Utility General K.S.A. 12-825d 116,204.00 
  Water Utility General K.S.A. 12-825d 112,412.00 

 Recreation Fund Special Parks and 
    Recreation  K.S.A. 79-2958   783.00 
 Recreation Employee 
   Benefits Employee Benefits K.S.A. 12-16,102  80.00 
 Electric Utility  Employee Benefits   K.S.A. 12-16,102    49,254.00  
 Sewer Utility   Employee Benefits   K.S.A. 12-16,102   19,061.00 
 Water Utility Employee Benefits K.S.A. 12-16,102  29,232.00 
 Electric Utility Special Parks and 
    Recreation K.S.A. 12-825d   175,000.00 
 Electric Utility Tourism K.S.A. 12-825d   12,000.00 
 Electric Utility Golf Course K.S.A. 12-825d   70,000.00 
 Electric Utility Capital Improvements 
    General K.S.A. 12-825d   135,000.00 
 Capital Improvement General Obligation 
   Street   Bond and Interest K.S.A. 79-2958   19,158.53 
 Sewer Utility General Obligation 
    Bond and Interest K.S.A. 13-1270   435,000.00 
 Water Utility General Obligation 
    Bond and Interest K.S.A. 13-1270   59,827.00 
 

33



 

- 16 - 

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
  

There were no subsequent events requiring recognition in the financial statement. 
Additionally, there were no nonrecognized subsequent events requiring disclosure. 
 

34



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

35



Expenditures
 Adjustments for Total  Charged to Variance -
 Certified Qualifying Budget for Current Year Over

Funds Budget Budget Credits Comparison Budget (Under)
General Fund 2,267,715.00$    38,525.14$         2,306,240.14$    2,263,497.69$    (42,742.45)$        
Special Purpose Funds:
   Industrial 62,785.00           -                     62,785.00           30,545.58           (32,239.42)          
   Library 111,854.00         -                     111,854.00         9,986.49             (101,867.51)        
   Recreation 783.00                -                     783.00                783.00                -                     
   Recreation Employee Benefits 80.00                  -                     80.00                  80.00                  -                     
   Employee Benefits 705,973.00         -                     705,973.00         615,497.36         (90,475.64)          
   Special Parks and Recreation 255,766.00         -                     255,766.00         218,589.79         (37,176.21)          
   Tourism 74,380.00           -                     74,380.00           44,639.98           (29,740.02)          
    911 9,897.00             -                     9,897.00             -                     (9,897.00)            
   Street Improvement 182,000.00         -                     182,000.00         113,547.61         (68,452.39)          
   Golf Course 255,123.00         -                     255,123.00         251,671.59         (3,451.41)            
   Public Safety Equipment 9,847.00             -                     9,847.00             7,568.10             (2,278.90)            
Bond and Interest Fund:
  General Obligation Bond and Interest 808,495.00         -                     808,495.00         753,495.00         (55,000.00)          
Business Funds:
   Electric Utility 4,143,113.00      4,511.78             4,147,624.78      3,865,267.71      (282,357.07)        
   Water Utility 903,467.00         -                     903,467.00         902,222.33         (1,244.67)            
   Refuse Utility 379,700.00         -                     379,700.00         378,807.86         (892.14)               
   Sewer Utility 893,881.00         -                     893,881.00         847,921.19         (45,959.81)          

- 17 -

Schedule 1
CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

Summary of Expenditures - Actual and Budget
(Budgeted Funds Only)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Regulatory Basis

36



Schedule 2
 1 of 21

Current Year
 Prior Variance -
 Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Ad Valorem Property Tax 535,302.23$        508,063.93$        542,702.00$        (34,638.07)$         
    Delinquent Tax 13,423.63            31,074.97            16,000.00            15,074.97            
    Motor Vehicle Tax 50,310.23            56,778.12            55,936.00            842.12                 
    Recreational Vehicle Tax 656.89                 802.12                 803.00                 (0.88)                    
    16/20M Vehicle Tax 427.75                 475.90                 387.00                 88.90                   
    Commerical Vehicle -                       1,505.52              -                       1,505.52              
    Special Assessments 2,535.84              5,611.82              -                       5,611.82              
    Sales Tax 657,976.38          719,508.51          637,806.00          81,702.51            
    Franchise Taxes 143,126.79          143,103.31          124,535.00          18,568.31            
  Intergovernmental
    Local Alcoholic Liquor Tax 3,409.16              2,900.01              3,784.00              (883.99)                
    Grant Proceeds 22,355.43            22,908.77            16,000.00            6,908.77              
  Licenses and Permits 33,275.21            19,382.58            28,300.00            (8,917.42)             
  Charges for Services
    Sale of Cemetery Lots 7,470.00              7,800.00              39,900.00            (32,100.00)           
    Cemetery Charges 25,695.00            26,665.00            -                       26,665.00            
    Auditorium Rent 4,235.00              3,980.00              -                       3,980.00              
    Memorial Hall Rent 3,925.00              4,190.00              -                       4,190.00              
    Swimming Pool Fees 213.00                 545.00                 -                       545.00                 
    Animal Control 7,952.00              7,787.00              -                       7,787.00              
    Drug Screening 1,300.00              2,385.00              -                       2,385.00              
  Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
    Fines 114,517.00          115,309.00          122,000.00          (6,691.00)             
  Use of Money and Property
    Interest Income 20,447.11            12,895.86            23,000.00            (10,104.14)           
    Sale of Equipment and Property 4,600.00              6,000.00              1,000.00              5,000.00              
  Other Receipts
    Miscellaneous 19,474.55            4,371.49              11,250.00            (6,878.51)             
    John Brown Cabin -                       -                       -                       -                       
    Reimbursed Expense 14,687.05            38,525.14            12,000.00            26,525.14            
  Operating Transfers from:
    Electric Utility Fund 295,353.00          323,806.00          548,362.00          (224,556.00)         

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

GENERAL FUND

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

- 18 -

Regulatory Basis

37



Schedule 1

Current Year
 Prior Variance -
 Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts (Continued)
  Operating Transfers from (Continued):
    Water Utility Fund 128,346.00$        112,412.00$        43,000.00$          69,412.00$          
    Sewer Utility Fund 126,346.00          116,204.00          39,000.00            77,204.00            

Total Receipts 2,237,360.25       2,294,991.05       2,265,765.00$     29,226.05$          

Expenditures  
  General Administration
    Personal Services 404,005.13          304,377.39          453,030.00          (148,652.61)         
    Contractual Services 130,225.85          145,883.52          160,024.00          (14,140.48)           
    Commodities 37,456.01            17,405.23            15,500.00            1,905.23              
    Capital Outlay 389.67                 7,020.48              15,400.00            (8,379.52)             
    Other Expenses 7,157.83              6,596.95              7,000.00              (403.05)                
  Code Enforcement
    Personal Services -                       57,809.24            -                       57,809.24            
    Contractual Services -                       10,491.05            -                       10,491.05            
    Commodities -                       4,906.84              -                       4,906.84              
    Capital Outlay -                       1,153.00              -                       1,153.00              
  Police and Fire 
    Personal Services 771,007.15          791,247.36          757,412.00          33,835.36            
    Contractual Services 73,137.91            90,991.81            87,622.00            3,369.81              
    Commodities 69,476.08            75,448.33            72,400.00            3,048.33              
    Capital Outlay 209.99                 3,577.14              6,000.00              (2,422.86)             
  John Brown Cabin
    Personal Services 27,152.28            27,533.84            27,068.00            465.84                 
    Contractual Services 8,770.68              7,659.23              10,234.00            (2,574.77)             
    Commodities 74.38                   131.10                 1,450.00              (1,318.90)             
    Capital Outlay -                       -                       1,000.00              (1,000.00)             
  Streets and Alleys
    Personal Services 175,763.61          162,489.62          186,578.00          (24,088.38)           
    Contractual Services 27,589.53            27,511.38            29,530.00            (2,018.62)             
    Commodities 54,842.40            60,139.29            39,700.00            20,439.29            
    Capital Outlay -                       6,923.04              -                       6,923.04              
  Swimming Pool
    Personal Services 2,898.58              -                       1,250.00              (1,250.00)             
    Contractual Services 3,655.18              1,910.01              15,620.00            (13,709.99)           
    Commodities 500.00                 375.00                 1,000.00              (625.00)                
    Capital Outlay -                       -                       -                       -                       

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
Regulatory Basis

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

GENERAL FUND

- 19 -

1 of 21 (Continued)

38



Schedule 1

Current Year
 Prior Variance -
 Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Expenditures (Continued)
  Cemeteries
    Personal Services 68,103.75$          149,751.19$        68,825.00$          80,926.19$          
    Contractual Services 26,195.56            28,862.92            29,688.00            (825.08)                
    Commodities 3,684.60              20,202.90            10,170.00            10,032.90            
    Capital Outlay -                       1,420.99              -                       1,420.99              
  Municipal Court Services
    Personal Services 19,950.87            19,781.31            21,669.00            (1,887.69)             
    Contractual Services 92,411.76            84,688.32            94,931.00            (10,242.68)           
    Commodities 1,235.05              1,528.93              300.00                 1,228.93              
    Capital Outlay 337.95                 962.94                 -                       962.94                 
  Levees and Stormwater
    Contractual Services 4,637.25              6,455.70              5,185.00              1,270.70              
    Commodities 2,572.03              2,605.46              2,150.00              455.46                 
    Capital Outlay -                       -                       5,000.00              (5,000.00)             
  Library
    Personal Services 86,105.96            83,156.57            88,629.00            (5,472.43)             
    Contractual Services 14,795.13            14,287.57            19,550.00            (5,262.43)             
    Commodities 29,126.71            28,985.89            33,300.00            (4,314.11)             
    Capital Outlay 2,697.49              9,226.15              500.00                 8,726.15              
Total Certified Budget 2,267,715.00       (4,217.31)             
Adjustments for Qualifying
  Budget Credits 38,525.14            (38,525.14)           

Total Expenditures 2,146,166.37       2,263,497.69       2,306,240.14$     (42,742.45)$         

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures 91,193.88            31,493.36            

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 111,384.68          202,578.56          

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 202,578.56$        234,071.92$        

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

- 20 -

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

1 of 21 (Continued)

Regulatory Basis

39



Schedule 2
2 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Delinquent Tax 12.25$                 12.10$                 -$                     12.10$                 
  Use of Money and Property
    Rental Income 36,306.00            30,600.00            17,600.00            13,000.00            
    Sale of Assets -                       13,780.00            -                       13,780.00            
  Other Receipts
    Miscellaneous -                       1,012.50              18,000.00            (16,987.50)           

Total Receipts 36,318.25            45,404.60            35,600.00$          9,804.60$            
    

Expenditures    
  General Government     
    Contractual Services 19,692.16            19,545.58            38,785.00$          (19,239.42)$         
    Capital Outlay 42,742.00            11,000.00            24,000.00            (13,000.00)           

  
Total Expenditures 62,434.16            30,545.58            62,785.00$          (32,239.42)$         

    
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (26,115.91)           14,859.02            

  
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 61,237.37            35,121.46            

  
Unencumbered Cash, Ending 35,121.46$          49,980.48$          

  

- 21 -

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
INDUSTRIAL FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Regulatory Basis

40



Schedule 2
3 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Delinquent Tax 108.03$               93.20$                 -$                     93.20$                 
  Intergovernmental
    Grant Proceeds 9,949.00              9,200.00              6,000.00              3,200.00              
  Use of Money and Property
    Interest Income 157.15                 119.27                 600.00                 (480.73)                
  Other Receipts
    Donations 5,869.31              4,233.85              2,000.00              2,233.85              

Total Receipts 16,083.49            13,646.32            8,600.00$            5,046.32$            
    

Expenditures  
  Culture and Recreation   
    Contractual Services 1,654.58              3,389.46              105,854.00$        (102,464.54)$       
    Commodities 5,197.48              3,250.60              6,000.00              (2,749.40)             
    Capital Outlay 26,590.77            3,346.43              -                       3,346.43              

Total Expenditures 33,442.83            9,986.49              111,854.00$        (101,867.51)$       
    

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (17,359.34)           3,659.83              

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 115,753.52          98,394.18            
  

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 98,394.18$          102,054.01$        
  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 22 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
LIBRARY FUND

Regulatory Basis

41



Schedule 2
4 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Ad Valorem Property Tax (11.30)$                (17.47)$                -$                     (17.47)$                
    Delinquent Tax 2,115.42              2,008.94              -                       2,008.94              
    Motor Vehicle Tax 9,329.71              1,949.71              -                       1,949.71              
    Recreational  Vehicle Tax 118.97                 24.69                   -                       24.69                   
    16/20M Vehicle Tax 88.57                   85.12                   69.00                   16.12                   

Total Receipts 11,641.37            4,050.99              69.00$                 3,981.99$            
    

Expenditures  
  Culture and Recreation   
   Operating Transfers to:
    Speical Parks and Recreation 12,355.24            783.00                 783.00$               -$                     

 
Total Expenditures 12,355.24            783.00                 783.00$               -$                     

    
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (713.87)                3,267.99              

 
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 713.87                 -                       

  
Unencumbered Cash, Ending -$                     3,268.00$            

  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 23 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
RECREATION FUND

Regulatory Basis

42



Schedule 2
5 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Ad Valorem Property Tax (1.41)$                  (2.19)$                  -$                     (2.19)$                  
    Delinquent Tax 264.69                 245.90                 80.00                   165.90                 
    Motor Vehicle Tax 1,167.95              244.20                 -                       244.20                 
    Recreational  Vehicle Tax 14.89                   3.09                     -                       3.09                     
    16/20M Vehicle Tax 11.07                   10.66                   -                       10.66                   

Total Receipts 1,457.19              501.66                 80.00$                 421.66$               
    

Expenditures  
  Culture and Recreation   
   Operating Transfer to
    Employee Benefits Fund 1,457.19              80.00                   80.00$                 -$                     

 
Total Expenditures 1,457.19              80.00                   80.00$                 -$                     

    
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures -                       421.66                 

 
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning -                       -                       

  
Unencumbered Cash, Ending -$                     421.66$               

  

- 24 -

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
RECREATION EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Regulatory Basis

43



Schedule 2
6 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Ad Valorem Property Tax 473,228.04$        523,862.57$        559,568.00$        (35,705.43)$         
    Delinquent Tax 12,531.48            28,449.21            14,173.00            14,276.21            
    Motor Vehicle Tax 47,063.11            50,268.83            49,451.00            817.83                 
    Recreational Vehicle Tax 595.23                 710.06                 710.00                 0.06                     
    16/20M Vehicle Tax 462.76                 423.94                 385.00                 38.94                   
    Commercial Vehicle -                       1,330.97              -                       1,330.97              
  Other Receipts
    Reimbursed Expense 10,579.00            -                       -                       -                       
  Operating Transfers from:
    Electric Utility Fund 43,381.00            49,254.00            49,254.00            -                       
    Sewer Utility Fund 15,067.25            19,061.00            19,061.00            -                       
    Water Utility Fund 24,545.25            29,232.00            29,232.00            -                       
    Recreation Empoyee Benefits Fund 1,457.19              80.00                   80.00                   -                       

Total Receipts 628,910.31          702,672.58          721,914.00$        (19,241.42)$         
    

Expenditures  
  General Government   
    Personal Services 636,173.17          600,102.36          670,973.00$        (70,870.64)$         
    Contractual Services 24,296.25            15,395.00            35,000.00            (19,605.00)           

Total Expenditures 660,469.42          615,497.36          705,973.00$        (90,475.64)$         
    

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (31,559.11)           87,175.22            

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 52,082.33            20,523.22            
  

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 20,523.22$          107,698.44$        
  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 25 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND

Regulatory Basis

44



Schedule 2
7 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt  
    Local Alcoholic Liquor Tax 3,409.16$            2,900.00$            3,783.00$            (883.00)$              
  Charges for Services
    Registration Fees 30,078.68            28,619.50            31,500.00            (2,880.50)             
    Concessions 13,624.55            6,911.33              17,000.00            (10,088.67)           
    Sponsorhsip Income 1,375.00              125.00                 3,000.00              (2,875.00)             
  Other Receipts
    Donations -                       500.00                 -                       500.00                 
    Miscellaneous 9,643.65              6,157.00              -                       6,157.00              
    Reimbursed Expense 4,308.09              195.00                 -                       195.00                 
  Operating Transfers from:
    Recreation Fund 12,355.24            783.00                 783.00                 -                       
    Electric Utility Fund 175,000.00          175,000.00          175,000.00          -                       

Total Receipts 249,794.37          221,190.83          231,066.00$        (9,875.17)$           

Expenditures  
 Culture and Recreation   
  Facilities
    Personal Services 58,107.81            66,940.81            64,385.00$          2,555.81$            
    Contractual Services 24,825.29            25,856.88            26,536.00            (679.12)                
    Commodities 38,813.01            33,549.14            30,350.00            3,199.14              
    Capital Outlay 26,343.00            2,478.99              24,500.00            (22,021.01)           
  Recreation Programs
    Personal Services 49,719.09            48,240.05            53,458.00            (5,217.95)             
    Contractual Services 23,715.70            19,482.16            21,237.00            (1,754.84)             
    Commodities 29,250.39            21,401.76            35,300.00            (13,898.24)           
    Capital Outlay 1,872.40              640.00                 -                       640.00                 

Total Expenditures 252,646.69          218,589.79          255,766.00$        (37,176.21)$         
    

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (2,852.32)             2,601.04              

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 91,072.82            88,220.50            
  

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 88,220.50$          90,821.54$          

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 26 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
SPECIAL PARKS AND RECREATION FUND

Regulatory Basis

45



Schedule 2
8 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Transient Guest Tax 12,169.11$          18,670.58$          9,000.00$            9,670.58$            
  Charges for Services
    Rental Income 165.00                 100.00                 150.00                 (50.00)                  
    Sponsorship Income 14,625.00            15,900.00            11,000.00            4,900.00              
    Ticket Sales 7,820.00              7,271.53              1,250.00              6,021.53              
    Entry Fees 1,180.00              421.00                 2,800.00              (2,379.00)             
    Consessions 3,535.00              2,694.75              12,000.00            (9,305.25)             
  Other Receipts
    Donations 4,773.22              4,174.62              18,000.00            (13,825.38)           
    Miscellaneous 733.00                 689.90                 -                       689.90                 
    Reimbursed Expense 3,061.22              302.98                 3,500.00              (3,197.02)             
  Operating Transfers from
    Electric Utility Fund 12,000.00            12,000.00            12,750.00            (750.00)                

    
Total Receipts 60,061.55            62,225.36            70,450.00$          (8,224.64)$           

    
Expenditures  
  General Government   
    Contractual Services 45,047.42            29,986.02            49,750.00$          (19,763.98)$         
    Commodities 14,383.36            14,013.97            22,800.00            (8,786.03)             
    Other Expenses 2,074.90              639.99                 1,830.00              (1,190.01)             

 
Total Expenditures 61,505.68            44,639.98            74,380.00$          (29,740.02)$         

    
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (1,444.13)             17,585.38            

 
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 9,423.13              7,979.00              

  
Unencumbered Cash, Ending 7,979.00$            25,564.38$          

  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 27 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
TOURISM FUND

Regulatory Basis

46



Schedule 2
9 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt  
    Emergency Telephone Tax -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total Receipts -                       -                       -$                     -$                     
    

Expenditures  
  General Government   
    Contractual Services -                       -                       9,897.00$            (9,897.00)$           

Total Expenditures -                       -                       9,897.00$            (9,897.00)$           
    

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures -                       -                       
 

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 9,897.41              9,897.41              
  

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 9,897.41$            9,897.41$            
  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 28 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
911 FUND

Regulatory Basis

47



Schedule 2
10 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Motor Fuel Tax 111,162.32$        113,541.73$        115,590.00$        (2,048.27)$           
  Intergovernmental
    County Connecting Links 5,100.00              5,100.00              5,100.00              -                       
  Other Receipts
    Reimbursed Expense -                       15.40                   -                       15.40                   
  Operating Transfers from
    Capital Improvements Grant Fund 3,831.25              -                       -                       -                       

  
Total Receipts 120,093.57          118,657.13          120,690.00$        (2,032.87)$           

   
Expenditures  
  General Government
    Contractual Services 2,936.35              7,067.04              2,000.00$            5,067.04$            
    Commodities 36,127.81            37,072.68            130,000.00          (92,927.32)           
    Capital Outlay 58,224.72            43,927.89            50,000.00            (6,072.11)             
  Debt Service
    Principal -                       22,846.77            -                       22,846.77            
    Interest -                       2,633.23              -                       2,633.23              

 
Total Expenditures 97,288.88            113,547.61          182,000.00$        (68,452.39)$         

   
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures 22,804.69            5,109.52              

 
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 99,271.65            122,076.34          

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 122,076.34$        127,185.86$        
  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 29 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND

Regulatory Basis

48



Schedule 2
11 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Charges for Services
    Golf Course Sheds 3,159.00$            1,746.80$            -$                     1,746.80$            
    Membership Fees 47,899.55            33,118.04            78,728.00            (45,609.96)           
    Green Fees 46,328.27            39,079.75            58,684.00            (19,604.25)           
    Golf Cart Fees 40,045.40            35,460.78            25,618.00            9,842.78              
    Sales Tax 3,614.38              6,121.00              -                       6,121.00              
    Driving Range 1,613.59              2,453.43              -                       2,453.43              
    Concessions 31,414.63            41,079.48            42,877.00            (1,797.52)             
    Tournaments 7,417.00              819.00                 -                       819.00                 
    Other Fees 2,840.00              2,117.03              9,700.00              (7,582.97)             
  Other Receipts
    Miscellaneous 445.06                 -                       -                       -                       
    Reimbursed Expense 336.70                 -                       -                       -                       
  Operating Transfers from
    Electric Utility Fund 98,250.00            70,000.00            45,000.00            25,000.00            

  
Total Receipts 283,363.58          231,995.31          260,607.00$        (28,611.69)$         
Expenditures  
  Culture and Recreation
    Personal Services 122,464.88          120,837.31          122,585.00$        (1,747.69)$           
    Contractual Services 32,680.20            36,867.46            23,366.00            13,501.46            
    Commodities 68,179.64            61,444.49            47,000.00            14,444.49            
    Capital Outlay 10,699.99            3,289.18              -                       3,289.18              
    Other Expenses 6,733.22              6,342.83              39,400.00            (33,057.17)           
  Debt Service
    Principal 12,850.74            13,340.58            22,772.00            (9,431.42)             
    Interest 8,520.37              9,549.74              -                       9,549.74              

Total Expenditures 262,129.04          251,671.59          255,123.00$        (3,451.41)$           
   

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures 21,234.54            (19,676.28)           
 

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 4,803.83              26,038.37            

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 26,038.37$          6,362.09$            

- 30 -

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
GOLF COURSE FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Regulatory Basis

49



Schedule 2
12 of 21

 

Prior Current
Year Year

Actual Actual
Receipts  
  Use of Money and Property
    Capital Lease Proceeds 95,000.00$          -$                     
  Other Receipts
    Donations 35,000.00            40,900.00            
    Miscellaneous 325.80                 -                       
  Operating Transfers from
    Electric Utility Fund 118,000.00          135,000.00          

  
Total Receipts 248,325.80          175,900.00           

   
Expenditures  
  Capital Projects
    Contractual Services 13,142.00            2,765.00              
    Commodities -                       -                       
    Capital Outlay 382,431.38          156,195.80          

   
Total Expenditures 395,573.38          158,960.80           

   
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (147,247.58)         16,939.20            

 
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 357,726.90          210,479.32           

  
Unencumbered Cash, Ending 210,479.32$        227,418.52$         

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 31 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS GENERAL FUND

Regulatory Basis

50



Schedule 2
13 of 21

 

Prior Current
Year Year

Actual Actual
Receipts  
  Use of Money and Property
    Temporary Note Proceeds -$                     1,030,669.00$     

  
Total Receipts -                       1,030,669.00        

   
Expenditures  
  Capital Projects
    Contractual Services 92,658.31            112,889.27          
    Capital Outlay 208,551.00          748,353.63          
  Debt Service
    Interest -                       8,088.41              

   
Total Expenditures 301,209.31          869,331.31           

   
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (301,209.31)         161,337.69          

 
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning -                       (301,209.31)          

  
Unencumbered Cash, Ending (301,209.31)$       (139,871.62)$        

- 32 -

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS SEWER FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual
Regulatory Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

51



Schedule 2
14 of 21

 

Prior Current
Year Year

Actual Actual
Receipts  
  Use of Money and Property
    Temporary Note Proceeds -$                     99,964.26$          

  
Total Receipts -                       99,964.26             

   
Expenditures  
  Capital Projects
    Contractual Services -                       33,985.66            
  Operating Transfers to
    General Obligations Bond
     Bond and Interest Fund -                       19,158.53            

   
Total Expenditures -                       53,144.19             

   
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures -                       46,820.07            

 
Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 19,158.54            19,158.54             

  
Unencumbered Cash, Ending 19,158.54$          65,978.61$           

- 33 -

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS STREET FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual
Regulatory Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

52



Schedule 2
15 of 21

 

Prior Current
Year Year

Actual Actual
Receipts
  Use of Money and Property
    Temporary Note Proceeds -$                     600,035.74$        
    Bond Proceeds 590,000.00          -                       
    Sale of Assets -                       40,000.00            
  Other Receipts
    Donations -                       500.00                 
    Reimbursed Expense -                       3,318.35              

Total Receipts 590,000.00          643,854.09          
  

Expenditures  
  General Government
    Capital Outlay 329,995.21          51,773.27            
  Debt Service
    Principal -                       590,000.00          
    Interest -                       10,035.74            
  Operating Transfers to
    Street Improvement Fund 3,831.25              -                       
    Electric Utility Fund 160,970.00          -                       

Total Expenditures 494,796.46          651,809.01          
  

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures 95,203.54            (7,954.92)             

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 164,801.26          260,004.80          
  

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 260,004.80$        252,049.88$        
  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS GRANT FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

- 34 -

Regulatory Basis

53



Schedule 2
16 of 21

 
Current Year

Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt
    Delinquent Tax 11.14$                 9.16$                   -$                     9.16$                   
  Other Receipts
    Reimbursed Expense -                       2,194.71              -                       2,194.71              

Total Receipts 11.14                   2,203.87              -$                     2,203.87$            
    

Expenditures  
  General Government   
    Capital Outlay 789.79                 7,568.10              9,847.00$            (2,278.90)$           

Total Expenditures 789.79                 7,568.10              9,847.00$            (2,278.90)$           
    

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (778.65)                (5,364.23)             

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 9,847.11              9,068.46              
  

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 9,068.46$            3,704.23$            
  

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 35 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT FUND

Regulatory Basis

54



Schedule 2
17 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Taxes and Shared Receipt  
    Ad Valorem Property Tax 220,426.93$        231,834.30$        247,629.00$        (15,794.70)$         
    Delinquent Tax 5,692.59              13,236.50            6,500.00              6,736.50              
    Motor Vehicle Tax 24,057.93            24,226.20            23,034.00            1,192.20              
    Recreational Vehicle Tax 318.95                 341.03                 331.00                 10.03                   
    16/20M Vehicle Tax 188.85                 232.89                 179.00                 53.89                   
    Commerical Vehicle -                       619.95                 -                       619.95                 
  Other Receipts
    Reimbursed Expense -                       33.77                   -                       33.77                   
  Operating Transfers from:
    Capital Improvement - Streets Fun -                       19,158.53            -                       19,158.53            
    Sewer Utility Fund 434,000.00          435,000.00          435,000.00          -                       
    Water Utility Fund 59,827.00            59,827.00            59,827.00            -                       

Total Receipts 744,512.25          784,510.17          772,500.00$        12,010.17$          

Expenditures  
  Debt Service   
    Bond Principal 444,000.00          457,000.00          457,000.00$        -$                     
    Bond Interest 308,787.50          296,495.00          296,495.00          -                       
    Other -                       -                       55,000.00            (55,000.00)           

    
Total Expenditures 752,787.50          753,495.00          808,495.00$        (55,000.00)$         

    
Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (8,275.25)             31,015.17            

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 96,891.99            88,616.74            
  

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 88,616.74$          119,631.91$        

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 36 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND AND INTEREST FUND

Regulatory Basis

55



Schedule 2
18 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Charges for Services  
    Electric Charges 3,288,091.57$     3,687,767.95$     3,754,871.00$     (67,103.05)$         
    Sales Tax 105,189.35          122,672.79          114,825.00          7,847.79              
    Utility Deposits 55,997.74            49,950.00            50,000.00            (50.00)                  
    Late Fees 87,447.28            97,363.98            86,750.00            10,613.98            
    Other Charges 4,788.87              5,410.00              -                       5,410.00              
  Use of Money and Property
    Interest Income 931.39                 818.77                 -                       818.77                 
  Other Receipts
    Miscellaneous 10,824.07            8,281.00              14,000.00            (5,719.00)             
    Reimbursed Expense 1,536.78              4,511.78              -                       4,511.78              
  Operating Transfers from
    Capital Improvements Grant Fund 160,970.00          -                       -                       -                       

Total Receipts 3,715,777.05       3,976,776.27       4,020,446.00$     (43,669.73)$         
Expenditures  
  Administration
    Personal Services -                       1,152.06              34,863.00$          (33,710.94)$         
    Contractual Services 63,412.58            47,700.73            73,959.00            (26,258.27)           
    Commodities 1,467.96              694.92                 8,750.00              (8,055.08)             
    Capital Outlay 240.34                 2,032.88              3,500.00              (1,467.12)             
    Other Expenses 209,178.66          227,681.04          222,192.00          5,489.04              
  Electric Production
    Personal Services 139,852.14          134,003.01          131,595.00          2,408.01              
    Contractual Services 2,088,624.95       2,184,861.59       2,226,729.00       (41,867.41)           
    Commodities 30,782.79            8,507.04              44,500.00            (35,992.96)           
    Capital Outlay -                       652.32                 35,000.00            (34,347.68)           
  Electric Distribution
    Personal Services 289,103.91          294,006.32          313,629.00          (19,622.68)           
    Contractual Services 36,913.81            33,617.52            51,125.00            (17,507.48)           
    Commodities 79,011.88            99,533.23            95,200.00            4,333.23              
    Capital Outlay 58,310.43            65,765.05            164,000.00          (98,234.95)           

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

- 37 -

Regulatory Basis

56



Schedule 2
18 of 21 (Continued)

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Expenditures  (Continued)
  Operating Transfers to:
    General Fund 295,353.00$        323,806.00$        356,817.00$        (33,011.00)$         
    Golf Course Fund 98,250.00            70,000.00            45,000.00            25,000.00            
    Special Parks and Recreation Fund 175,000.00          175,000.00          175,000.00          -                       
    Employee Benefits Fund 43,381.00            49,254.00            49,254.00            -                       
    Tourism Fund 12,000.00            12,000.00            12,000.00            -                       
    Capital Improvements
      General Fund 118,000.00          135,000.00          100,000.00          35,000.00            
Total Certified Budget 4,143,113.00       (277,845.29)         
Adjustments for Qualifying
  Budget Credits 4,511.78              (4,511.78)             

 
Total Expenditures 3,738,883.45       3,865,267.71       4,147,624.78$     (282,357.07)$       

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (23,106.40)           111,508.56          

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 443,463.20          420,356.80          

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 420,356.80$        531,865.36$        

- 38 -

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Regulatory Basis

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

57



Schedule 2
19 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Charges for Services  
    Water Sales 790,277.77$        802,513.10$        857,621.00$        (55,107.90)$         
    Other Charges 3,322.49              4,219.42              4,555.00              (335.58)                
  Use of Money and Property
    Rental Income 11,592.00            11,592.00            11,592.00            -                       
  Other Receipts
    Miscellaneous 1,200.00              -                       1,000.00              (1,000.00)             
    Reimbursed Expense 593.40                 -                       4,000.00              (4,000.00)             

    
Total Receipts 806,985.66          818,324.52          878,768.00$        (60,443.48)$         

    
Expenditures  
  Administration
    Personal Services -                       1,577.86              198,159.00$        (196,581.14)$       
    Contractual Services 28,559.11            31,518.63            151,158.00          (119,639.37)         
    Commodities 3.59                     -                       366,323.00          (366,323.00)         
    Capital Outlay -                       1,978.88              85,000.00            (83,021.12)           
  Water Treatment
    Personal Services 82,281.31            105,732.82          -                       105,732.82          
    Contractual Services 62,910.35            71,343.45            -                       71,343.45            
    Commodities 178,914.33          141,010.47          -                       141,010.47          
    Capital Outlay 22,289.32            211.32                 -                       211.32                 
  Water Distribution
    Personal Services 75,669.47            95,069.77            -                       95,069.77            
    Contractual Services 65,440.49            141,752.71          -                       141,752.71          
    Commodities 43,807.35            65,334.69            -                       65,334.69            
    Capital Outlay 4,295.00              45,220.73            -                       45,220.73            
  Operating Transfers to:
    General Fund 128,346.00          112,412.00          59,827.00            52,585.00            
    General Obligation Bond
      and Interest Fund 59,827.00            59,827.00            43,000.00            16,827.00            
    Employee Benefits 24,545.25            29,232.00            -                       29,232.00            

Total Expenditures 776,888.57          902,222.33          903,467.00$        (1,244.67)$           
    

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures 30,097.09            (83,897.81)           

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 176,092.76          206,189.85          

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 206,189.85$        122,292.04$        

- 39 -

Regulatory Basis

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
WATER UTILITY FUND 

58



Schedule 2
20 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Charges for Services  
    Refuse Fees 387,118.46$        392,938.47$        380,000.00$        12,938.47$          
  Other Receipts
    Miscellaneous 360.00                 345.00                 -                       345.00                 

Total Receipts 387,478.46          393,283.47          380,000.00$        13,283.47$          

Expenditures  
  Collections
    Contractual Services 388,219.73          378,807.86          379,700.00$        (892.14)$              

Total Expenditures 388,219.73          378,807.86          379,700.00$        (892.14)$              
    

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures (741.27)                14,475.61            

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 6,251.94              5,510.67              

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 5,510.67$            19,986.28$          

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 40 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
REFUSE UTILITY FUND 

Regulatory Basis

59



Schedule 2
21 of 21

Current Year
Prior Variance -
Year Over

Actual Actual Budget (Under)
Receipts
  Charges for Services  
    Sewer Charges 825,378.76$        819,143.75$        775,624.00$        43,519.75$          
    Other Charges -                       -                       500.00                 (500.00)                
  Use of Money and Property
    Sale of Assets -                       1,500.00              -                       1,500.00              
  Other Receipts
    Reimbursed Expense 6,053.00              739.20                 -                       739.20                 

Total Receipts 831,431.76          821,382.95          776,124.00$        45,258.95$          

Expenditures  
  Collections
    Personal Services 96,103.68            127,481.23          130,266.00$        (2,784.77)$           
    Contractual Services 69,485.21            119,719.01          70,000.00            49,719.01            
    Commodities 42,033.87            25,992.50            85,100.00            (59,107.50)           
    Capital Outlay -                       4,463.45              25,000.00            (20,536.55)           
  Debt Service 
    Principal Payments -                       -                       20,200.00            (20,200.00)           
  Operating Transfers to:
    General Fund 126,346.00          116,204.00          39,000.00            77,204.00            
    Employee Benefits 15,067.25            19,061.00            89,315.00            (70,254.00)           
    General Obligation
      Bond and Interest Fund 434,000.00          435,000.00          435,000.00          -                       

Total Expenditures 783,036.01          847,921.19          893,881.00$        (45,959.81)$         

Receipts Over(Under) Expenditures 48,395.75            (26,538.24)           

Unencumbered Cash, Beginning 335,551.80          383,947.55          

Unencumbered Cash, Ending 383,947.55$        357,409.31$        

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

- 41 -

(With Comparative Actual Totals for the Prior Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures - Actual and Budget
SEWER UTILITY FUND 

Regulatory Basis

60



Beginning Ending
Fund Cash Balance Receipts Disbursements Cash Balance

Cafeteria 125 14,098.88$          45,716.52$          33,236.83$          26,578.57$          
Court ADSAP 7,661.00              -                       260.00                 7,401.00              
Court Bonds 5,883.86              13,722.10            12,356.42            7,249.54              
Evidence Liability 14,361.29            -                       1,461.50              12,899.79            
Fire Insurance Proceeds 0.84                     -                       -                       0.84                     
Forfeiture 257.29                 1,096.13              200.00                 1,153.42              
Payal Donations 95.65                   -                       -                       95.65                   
Revolving Loan 72,758.43            -                       -                       72,758.43            
Rural Fire 4,173.60              52,926.25            53,708.04            3,391.81              

119,290.84$        113,461.00$        101,222.79$        131,529.05$        

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS
Schedule 3

- 42 -

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
AGENCY FUNDS

Regulatory Basis

61



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2015-06-11 SAM - CDBG Revolving Loan Funds   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: June 11, 2015 

AGENDA ITEM: CDBG Revolving Loan Fund 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   In February, I provided you an update concerning the CDBG Revolving Loan 
Program for the City.  The Department of Commerce audited the program and noted that our 
materials and loan guidelines were out of date.  They also noted loans have not been issued in 
over 10 years.   

After the update, the Council discussed whether or not it was worth the effort to keep the money 
as we would be required to update the plan and material, have increased reporting, and create 
promotional materials for the loan.  I also noted that I thought the program guidelines (created 
in 1987) that we would have to meet are prohibitive for businesses and the loan amounts were 
not enough by today’s standards to help businesses add employees.  At the meeting, there 
seemed to be a consensus that if it looked like we weren’t going to be able to change the program 
to make it fit our needs, it wasn’t worth the effort to update the plan and take on these additional 
tasks. 

After discussions with staff, Miami County and other community managers, I made the decision 
that we should return the approximately $73,000 in funds to the state.  The positive outcome of 
returning the money may be that more funds will be available through special CDBG rounds as 
communities return this money. 

Attached is a draft letter to the Department of Commerce to return the funds.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and vote on a motion to return the funds.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve the motion to return the funds. 

62



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

    

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 
June 12, 2015 

 
 
 
Debbie Beck 
CDBG Grants Coordinator 
Kansas Department of Commerce 
1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 100 
Topeka, KS  66612 
 
Dear Ms. Beck: 
 
The Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie voted on June 11, 2015 to return the balance of its CDBG 
revolving loan fund to the Kansas Department of Commerce.  We have not had a reason to use this 
program in the past 20 years and we currently have no outstanding loans from the fund. 
 
The loan fund was created by Grant No.  ______________ .  As of June 12, 2015, the balance of funds is 
$_____________.  A check is enclosed for this amount. 
 
Thank you for your assistance in this process. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Donald R. Cawby 
City Manager 
 

63



 
RESOLUTION NO. ___    

 
A RESOLUTION WAIVING THE GAAP REQUIREMENTS 
OF K.S.A. 75-1120A(a) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2015. 

 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the  City  of  Osawatomie,  Kansas,  has  determined  that  the  financial 
statements and financial reports for the year ended 2015 to be prepared in conformity with the 
requirements of K.S.A. 75-1120a(a) are not relevant to the requirements of the cash basis and 
budget laws of this state and are of no significant value to the Governing Body or the members 
of the general public of the City of Osawatomie; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of 

Osawatomie, Kansas, in regular meeting duly assembled this 11th day of June, 2015 that the 
Governing Body waives the requirements of K.S.A. 75-1120a(a) as they apply to the City of 
Osawatomie for the year ended 2015. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Governing Body shall cause the financial 

statements and financial reports of the City of Osawatomie to be prepared on the basis of cash 
receipts and disbursements as adjusted to show compliance with the cash basis and budget laws 
of this State. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas 

this 11th day of June, 2015, a majority being in favor thereof. 
 

APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(SEAL) 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

L. Mark Govea, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
Ann Elmquist, City Clerk 

64



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2015-06-11 SAM - T-Mobile Lease Amendment   

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: June 11, 2015 

AGENDA ITEM: Amendment to T-Mobile Lease Agreement 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   Beginning last year, we had discussions with T-Mobile about modifications to 
their antennae on the east water tower.  Sometime this winter we finally learned that there were 
actually two projects in the works for the tower.  The first project would upgrade the current 
antennae to allow for their L700 upgrade which we understand to be their upgraded LTE service.  
The second project was to attach a microwave tower which will port the fiber signal from our 
tower to another tower in the area without fiber access. 

The first project was allowed to be completed under the current agreement which allows 9 
antennae attachments to the tower.  However, the microwave dish attachment is not covered 
under the current contract.  Once we determined a contract amendment would be necessary, 
we began negotiating for a new agreement, which has resulted in the proposed amendment.  The 
amendment provides for the microwave attachment for an increase in rent of $250 per month, 
or $3,000 annually.  The market rate is somewhere between $100 - $200 per foot of attachment.  
In this case, the dish will have a 2’ footprint, so we ended up around $125 per foot. We currently 
receive $13,331 per year, an amount which will go up another 15% in 2020.  The amendment will 
not change the agreement or its term.  We are currently in year 15 of a 25 year contract.   

In addition to this agreement, we have requested that T-Mobile remove three abandoned 
antennae from the tower which belong to a defunct carrier.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and vote on the propose amendment.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve the amendment, subject to an agreement on 
removing the abandoned equipment.   

65



Site #  A5B0088 / Osawatomie 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SITE AGREEMENT 
 

  THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO SITE AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is made and entered 
into by and between The City of Osawatomie (“Owner”), and T-Mobile Central LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, as successor in interest to APT Kansas City, Inc. (“Tenant”). 
 

The parties hereto recite, declare and agree as follows: 
 
A.  Owner and Tenant are parties to a Site Agreement dated March 9, 2000 (the “Agreement”) 

with respect to Property located at 253 First St., Osawatomie, KS..    
 

B.  Owner and Tenant desire to enter into this Amendment in order to modify and amend certain 
provisions of the Agreement. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
Owner and Tenant covenant and agree as follows: 
 

1. Effective as of the date of the start of construction, (a) Tenant will have the right to 
modify its Communications Facility as described and depicted on Exhibit B-1, which is attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein, and Owner hereby consents to and approves of the 
modifications described and depicted in Exhibit B-1 in all respects, and (b) the Rent that Tenant pays 
Owner will be increased by Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250.00) per month. 

 
2. The following is hereby added as the new final paragraph of Section 5 of the Agreement: 
 
“Tenant shall obtain Owner’s approval of Tenant’s construction plans, which approval shall not 

be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned.  Owner shall give such approval or provide Tenant 
with is requests for changes within ten (10) days of Owner’s receipt of Tenant’s plans.  If Owner does not 
provide such approval or request for changes with such time period, Owner shall be deemed to have 
approved the plans.  Owner shall not be entitled to receive any additional consideration in exchange for 
giving its approval of Tenant’s plans. 

 
3. Section 7 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 
“REMOVAL OF COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY.   All personal property and trade fixtures 

of Tenant shall be removed by Tenant upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 
 
4.  The terms and conditions of the Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference, and 

capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the same meanings such terms are given in the 
Agreement.  Wherever the defined term “APT” appears in the Agreement, is shall be replaced be 
the term “Tenant”.   Except as specifically set forth herein, this Amendment shall in no way modify, 
alter or amend the remaining terms of the Agreement, all of which are ratified by the parties and shall 
remain in full force and effect.  To the extent there is any conflict between the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement and this Amendment, the terms and conditions of this Amendment will govern and control. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment effective as of the date of 

execution by the last party to sign. 
 
  

66



 2 

The City of Osawatomie   T-Mobile Central LLC 
       
 
By:      By:       
Name: L. Mark Govea    Name:  Jay Blessing 
Title:  Mayor     Title:    Market Manager 
Date:____________________________  Date:      
 
 
Attest:       
 
 
 
Notary 

 
 
 
 
 

  

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



SITE AGREEMENT 
(Kansas) 

Osawatomie 
ASD088 

This Site Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this~ day of March, 2000, by and 
between The City of Osawatomie, ("Owner") and APT Kansas City, Inc., a Delaware 
corporation, its successors and assigns, ("APT"), provides for the granting and leasing of certain 
property interests on the following terms: 

For good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which 1s hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto agrees as follows: 

1. PROPERTY. The property interests hereby leased and granted by Owner ("Property") 
shall include the following: 

[x] Real property comprised of approximately 336 square feet ofland 

[ x ] Water tower exterior space for the attachment of antennas 

[x] Water tower exterior space required for cable runs to connect equipment and 
antennas 

[x] Non-exclusive easements required to run utility lines and cables 

[x] Non-exclusive easement across Owners Property (hereinafter defined) for access 

in or upon the Owner's real property ("Owner's Property") described on Exhibit "A" 
attached hereto and subject to the specifications shown and described on said Exhibit 
"B". 

2. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall be that part of five ( 5) years commencing on 
the date designated in a notice that APT will deliver to Owner (the "Commencement 
Date Notice") as the date on which APT will take possession which, if possession 
occurs at all, shall be no later than May 1, 2000 ("Commencement Date") and 
terminating on December 31 following the fourth (4th) year anniversary of the 
Commencement Date (the "Term") unless otherwise terminated as provided in 
paragraph 10. If the Commencement Date Notice is not received by May 1, 2000 then 
neither party shall have any further rights or obligations under this Agreement. 

3. RENT. APT's obligation to pay rent shall arise only upon delivery of the 
Commencement Date Notice. Thereafter, APT shall pay Owner rent quarterly in 
advance on January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1, beginning on the Commencement 
Date (for that portion of the applicable quarter in which the Commencement Date 
occurs) and thereafter every three (3) months as set forth above. The rent for the first 

75



I ) 

) 

) 

quarter shall not be payable until ten (10) days after receipt by APT-of properly 
executed and acknowledged signature counterparts of this Agreement and the 
Memorandum (hereinafter defined) from Owner. The monthly rent for the initial Term 
shall be Seven Hundred Fifty dollars, ($750.00) ("Initial Monthly Rent"), together with 
any applicable sales tax. Any partial months will be prorated. The monthly rent for 
each Option Period (defined below) shall be the Initial Monthly Rent, increased, upon 
the commencement of the Option Period, by a percentage of the Initial Monthly Rent 
which shall be computed by multiplying the number of years in the then expiring term 
(whether initial term or Option Period) times three percent (3%). Owner agrees to 
provide APT any information necessary to allow APT to make all rent payments 
through direct deposit or similar paperless transfer of funds. 

4. OPTION TERMS. APT may extend the term of the Agreement four (4) additional five 
(5) year Option Periods (individually, an "Option Period" and collectively, the "Option 
Periods"). APT shall have elected to extend the term for each successive Option Period 
unless it gives Owner written notice of its intention not to extend at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration of the then-current term. 

5. USE. APT may use the Property for the purpose of installing, removing, replacing, 
maintaining and operating a communications facility generally in accordance with 
Exhibit "A" subject to such modifications and alterations as may result from changes or 
improvements in technology (collectively, the "Communications Facility"), provided 
that APT shall not be required to occupy the Property. The manner in which the 
Communications Facility may be attached to any rooftop location shall be subject to the 
prior approval of Owner. Owner shall provide APT with twenty-four (24) hour, seven 
(7) day a week year around access to the Property. APT will pay all personal property 
taxes assessed against the Communications Facility. Owner shall timely pay all real 
property taxes and assessments against the Owner's Property. APT will not allow any 
mechanics' or materialmen's liens to be placed on the Property as a result of its work on 
the Property. 

During the term of this Agreement, APT shall have the right, but not the duty or 
obligation, to pay any taxes, judgments, liens, assessments or other charges which are 
or could become liens on Owner's Property or any portion thereof (individually and 
collectively, the "Liens"). If APT pays or otherwise satisfies any such Liens, in whole 
or in part, APT shall have the right, but not the duty or obligation, to offset or deduct 
any amounts so paid against any current or future payments of rent or other charges 
that are owed by APT to Owner pursuant to this Agreement (collectively, the "Rent 
Charges"). If APT elects to offset or deduct any amounts it pays to satisfy Liens 
against Rent Charges, Owner shall reimburse APT upon demand for any and all sums 
paid by APT which exceed the Rent Charges, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by APT in effecting the payment or satisfaction of 
the Liens and the offset or deduction of the same from the Rent Charges. 

APT, its agents and contractors, are hereby granted the right, at its sole cost and 
expense, to enter upon the Owner's Property and conduct such studies as APT deems 

76



-- ,- necessary to determine the Property's-suitability for-APT's intended use, These studies 
may include surveys, soil tests, environmental evaluations, radio wave propagation 
measurements, field strength tests and such other analyses and studies as APT deems 
necessary or desirable. Owner shall cooperate with APT and execute all documents 
required to permit APT's intended use of the Property in compliance with zoning, land 
use, and for building regulations. Owner hereby appoints APT as its agent and attorney
in-fact for the limited purpose of making such filings and taking such actions as are 
necessary to obtain any desired zoning and/or land use approvals. 

) 

6. UTILITIES. Payment for electric service and for telephone or other communication 
services to the Communications Facility shall be APT's responsibility. Owner agrees to 
cooperate with APT in its efforts to connect the Communications Facility to existing 
utility service at APT's expense. 

7. REMOVAL OF COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY. All personal property and trade 
fixtures of APT may be removed by APT upon the termination of this Agreement. 

8. INSURANCE. APT shall maintain commercial general liability insurance insuring 
APT against liability for personal injury, death or damage to personal property arising 
out of use of the Property by APT, with combined single limits of One Million and No/ 
100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00). APT shall also maintain fire and extended coverage 
insurance insuring APT's personal property for its full insurable value (subject to 
reasonable deductibles). Owner shall maintain commercial general liability insurance 
insuring Owner against liability for personal injury, death or damage to personal 
property arising out of its ownership, use and management of the Property or .the 
Owner's Property by Owner or its agents, with combined single limits of One Million 
and no/I 00 Dollars ($1,000,000). Owner shall also maintain fire and extended coverage 
insurance insuring Owner's Property for its full insurable value (subject to reasonable 
deductibles). Any policy required to be obtained pursuant to this Section 8 shall contain 
a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the other party hereto to the extent required under 
Section 11, Indemnity. 

9. CONDITION OF PROPERTY. Owner represents that the Owner's Property and all 
improvements thereto, including the proposed use of the Property by APT pursuant to 
this Agreement, are in compliance with all building, life/safety, and other laws of any 
governmental or quasi-governmental authority. 

·JO. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by APT at any time in its sole 
discretion by giving written notice thereof to Owner, which termination shall not 
constitute a waiver of APT's rights under Paragraph 16 of the Agreement. 

11. INDEMNITY. Owner and APT each indemnify the other against, and hold the other 
harmless from any and all costs (including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses) and 
claims, actions, damages, obligations, liabilities and liens which arise out of (a) the 
breach of this Agreement by the indemnifying party; and (b) the use and/or occupancy 
of the Property, or the balance of the Owner's Property, by such indemnifying party. 

77



) 

) 

12. 

13. 

···· -'I'his-indemnity shall-not-apply to·any claims; actions; damages; obligations, liabilities·· 
and liens arising from any negligent or intentional misconduct of the indemnified party 
and shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. Owner warrants that Owner has no knowledge of any 
substance, chemical, or waste on the Owner's Property that is identified as hazardous, 
toxic or dangerous in any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation. Owner 
shall hold APT harmless from and indemnify APT against any damage, loss, expense, 
response costs, or liability, including consultant fees and attorneys' fees resulting from 
the presence of hazardous substances on, under or around the Owner's Property or 
resulting from hazardous substances being generated, stored, disposed of, or transported 
to, on, under, or around the Owner's Property as long as the hazardous substances were 
not generated, stored, disposed of, or transported by APT or its employees, agents or 
contractors. 

CASUALTY/CONDEMNATION. If any portion of the Owner's Property or 
Communications Facility is damaged by any casualty and such damage adversely affects 
APT's use of the Property, or if a condemning authority takes any portion of the Owner's 
Property and such taking adversely affects APT's use of the Owner's Property, this 
Agreement shall terminate as of the date of the casualty or the date the title vests in the 
condemning authority, as the case may be if APT gives written notice of the same 
within thirty (30) days after APT receives notice of such casualty or taking. The parties 
shall be entitled to make claims in any condemnation proceeding for value of their 
respective interests in the Property (which for APT may include, where applicable, the 
value of the Communications Facility, moving expenses, prepaid rent, and business 
dislocation expenses). Sale of all or part of the Property to a purchaser with the power 
of eminent domain in the face of the exercise of the power shall be treated as a taking by 
condemnation. 

14. WAIVER OF LANDLORD'S LIEN. To the extent permitted by law, Owner hereby 
waives any and all lien rights it has or may have, statutory or otherwise, concerning the 
Communications Facility or any portion thereof which shall be deemed personal 
property for the purposes of this Agreement, regardless of whether or not the same is 
deemed real or personal property under applicable law. 

15. QUIET ENJOYMENT. APT, upon paying the rent, shall peaceably and quietly have, 
hold and enjoy the Property. If, as of the date of execution of this Agreement or 
hereafter, there is any mortgage, or other encumbrance affecting Owner's Property, then 
Owner agrees to obtain from the holder of such encumbrance an Agreement that APT 
shall not be disturbed in its possession, use and enjoyment of the Property. Owner shall 
not cause or permit any use of Owner's Property which interferes with or impairs the 
quality of the communication services being rendered by APT from the Property. 
Except in cases of emergency, Owner shall not have access to the Property unless 
accompanied by APT personnel. 

78



) 

) 

- -16.- ----DEFAUL-T.-Exceptas expressly limited hereby,-Owner-andAPTshalleaeh have-sueh 
remedies for the default of the other party hereto as may be provided at law or equity 
following written notice of such default and failure to cure the same within fifteen (15) 
days. 

17 .. · MISCELLANEOUS. 

·., 

a. Owner represents and warrants that Owner has full authority to enter into and 
sign this Agreement and has good and marketable title to the Owner's Property. 

b. This Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and negotiations and contains 
all agreements and understandings between the Owner and APT: This 
Agreement may only be amended in writing signed by all parties. Exhibits "A" 
through "C" are incorporated into this Agreement by reference. 

c. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts by the parties hereto. 

d. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall extend to and bind the heirs, 
personal representatives, successors and assigns of Owner and APT. 

e. 

f. 

The prevailing party in any action or proceeding in court to enforce the terms of 
this Agreement shall be entitled to receive its reasonable attorneys' fees and other 
reasonable enforcement costs and expenses from the non-prevailing party. 

Owner shall contemporaneously herewith execute and acknowledge and deliver 
to APT for recording a Memorandum of this Agreement ("Memorandum") in the 
form of Exhibit "C". 

g. APT may assign this Agreement at any time without Owner's consent provided 
that the same shall not release APT from any of the obligations arising under this 
Agreement. 

h. Notices shall be in writing and sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, 
certified or registered with return receipt requested or by any nationally 
recognized overnight courier service to the address set forth beneath the 
signature of each party below. Any such notice shall be deemed given when 
deposited in the United States Mail or delivered to such courier service. 

1. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the state in 
which the Owner's Property is located. 

J. Each party agrees to furnish to the other, within ten (10) days after request, such 
truthful estoppel information as the other may reasonably request. 

79



) Osawatomie, KS 
k. If any term of this Agreement is found to be void or invalid, such invalidity shall not 

affect the remaining terms of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and 
effect. 

I. Owner and APT each represent that they have not been represented by a real estate 
broker or other listing agent in this transaction. Each party ("Indemnifying Party") shall 
indemnify and hold the other party harmless from any claims for commission, fee or 
other payment by such broker or any other leasing agent claiming to have represented 
the Indemnifying Party herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto bind themselves to this Agreement on the day and year 
first written above. 

City of Osawatomie 

By:~~~ 
PrintName: Sle=' '·" c~ 
Print Title: Meyor of the City Osa~01nie 
Federa!TaxIDNo.: llt- (oo3ll b 

APT KANSAS CITY, INC. 
A Delaware corporation 

~~ 7J011IlBriStm: 
Title: Manager, Implementation 

Address of APT: 

Real Estate Department 
American Portable Telecom 
P.O. Box 31793 
Chicago, IL 69631-0793 

With a copy to: 

Blackwell Sanders 
2300 Main, Suite 1100 

OWNER 

APT 

Address of Owner: 
439 Main, P.O. Box 37 
Osawatomie, KS. 66064 

} Kansas City, MO 64108 

kcl-136080_1.WPS 

_{;_ 

80



) 

STATE OF KANSAS 

COUNTY OF kl~oJ 
SS ______ _ 

....... Aeria_LA5J2_Q(l_8_ 
Osawatomie, KS 

On this .ifl!Jday of March,2000, before me appeared (Mayor) Sfl..e.- IN.J\ Lt Lli.o 
to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn (or affirmed) did say that he is the present 
Mayor of the City of Osawatomie, and that said instrument was signed on behalf of said city by 
authority of its board of directors (or trustees) and council members acknowledged said instrument to 
be the free act and deed of said city. 

STATE OF KANSAS 
SS _____ _ 

COUNTY OF JOHNSON 

On this_ day of March, 2000_, before me appeared John Bristow, to me personally known, 
who, being by me duly sworn (or affirmed) did say that he is the Manager, Implementation of APT 
KANSAS CITY, INC., and that said instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said corporation by 
authority of its board of directors (or trustees) and saip John Bristow acknowledged said instrument to 
be the free act and deed of said corporation. 

Notary Public - Kansas 
My commission expires: 

[Seal] 

kcl-1360S0_1.WP5 

81



: ) 

EXHIBIT "A" 
TO 

SITE AGREEMENT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF OWNER'S PROPERTY: 

See attached 

-- -- ___ Osawatomie __ 
A5D088 

It is agreed by Owner and APT that the precise legal description for the Owner's Property will be 
corrected, if necessary, and that the correct legal description may be placed on this Exhibit "A " by 
APT. 

kcl-136080 1.WPS 

82



Fund #01
General Fund

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 103,364$        54,598$          25,728$          30,824$          111,385$       202,579$       

REVENUES
Property & Vechicle Taxes 511,638$        575,434$        501,209$       547,203$       600,121$       598,701$       
Sales & Liquor Taxes 611,940          591,694          628,641          642,306          661,386          722,409          
Grants 2,429               14,049             11,391            10,791            22,355            22,909            
Franchise Fees 164,289          164,775          156,721          125,529          143,127          143,103          
Admin. & Internal Fees -                   -                   -                  357,000          385,295          381,422          
Licenses & Permits 49,582             36,685             36,554            27,016            33,275            19,383            
Charges for Services 42,514             35,843             55,826            55,131            50,790            52,807            
Fines & Fees 96,009             118,835          101,608          130,323          114,517          115,309          
Interest 30,259             25,114             22,095            22,656            20,447            12,896            
Transfers 684,500          763,182          824,511          263,963          164,750          171,000          
Sale of Assets -                   -                   1,750              6,025              4,600              6,000              
Miscellaneous 53,716             39,329             53,616            22,515            36,697            49,053            

TOTAL REVENUES 2,246,876$    2,364,941$    2,393,923$    2,210,457$    2,237,360$    2,294,991$    
-                       

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 2,350,240$    2,419,539$    2,419,651$    2,241,281$    2,348,745$    2,497,570$    

EXPENSES
By Program

101 General Administration 601,629$        507,121$        528,084$       554,617$       565,698$       481,284$       
102 Code Enforcement (2013) 100,665          82,314             81,789            -                  13,536            74,360            
103 Police 917,716          996,466          906,114          853,469          882,647          901,297          
104 John Brown Cabin 41,725             43,398             41,507            39,328            35,997            35,324            
105 Streets & Alleys 266,642          332,091          284,437          235,595          258,196          257,063          
106 Swimming Pool 33,417             34,669             38,954            38,006            7,054              2,285              
107 Properties & Maintenance 108,378          119,784          117,328          121,049          97,984            200,238          
108 Fire Dept (Sal-2011,All-2013) 21,630             18,895             36,370            22,756            31,184            59,968            
109 Municipal Court Services 77,330             98,426             120,656          123,576          113,936          106,962          
110 Levees & Stormwater 126,510          14,607             121,175          28,176            7,209              9,061              
111 Library -                   115,786          112,413          113,324          132,725          135,656          

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,295,642$    2,363,557$    2,388,827$    2,129,896$    2,146,166$    2,263,498$    

Revenues Over Expenditures (48,766)$         1,384$             5,096$            80,561$          91,194$          31,493$          

ENDING BALANCE 54,598$          55,982$          30,824$          111,385$       202,579$       234,072$       
as a percentage of expenses 2.4% 2.4% 1.3% 5.2% 9.4% 10.3%

83



Fund #01
REVENUES

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

5100 TAXES 22.365            25.375            
101 Ad Valorem Tax 452,215$        510,994$        432,233$        477,203$        535,302$        508,064$        
102 Delinquent Ad Valorem Tax 8,877               17,249             17,886             23,241             13,424             31,075             

Subtotal TAXES 461,092$        528,243$        450,119$        500,444$        548,726$        539,139$        

5200 INTERGOVERNMENTAL
201 City Sales Tax 242,597$        232,888$        241,692$        245,948$        254,261$        261,754$        
202 County Sales Tax 294,913          286,796          307,604          310,121          323,558          352,431          
203 City Comp Use Tax 68,094             66,085             75,716             83,658             35,203             48,282             
204 County Comp Use Tax 44,954             57,041             
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 49,826             46,375             50,360             45,790             50,310             56,778             
206 Liquor Tax 6,336               5,926               3,630               2,580               3,409               2,900               
215 RV Tax 720                  816                  731                  696                  657                  802                  
216 16/20M Vechile Tax -                   -                   -                   273                  428                  476                  
217 Commercial Motor Vehicle Tax 1,506               
220 Grant Receipts (Non-CDBG) -                   12,398             10,495             9,454               22,355             22,909             
221 DARE/COPS Police Grant -                   -                   -                   -                   
231 John Brown Cabin 2,429               1,652               897                  1,337               
241 Special County Sales Tax -                   -                   -                   

Subtotal INTERGOVERNMENTAL 664,914$        652,934$        691,123$        699,856$        735,136$        804,879$        

5300 FRANCHISE FEES
301 Gas Company Franchise Fees 111,261$        97,515$          87,647$          67,758$          86,203$          89,562$          
302 Cable TV Franchise Fees 35,744             43,201             35,085             27,253             20,500             28,356             
303 Telephone Franchise Fees 16,303             22,582             29,596             28,424             34,325             22,566             
304 Electric Franchise Fees 981                  1,477               4,394               2,093               2,100               2,619               

Subtotal FRANCHISE FEES 164,289$        164,775$        156,721$        125,529$        143,127$        143,103$        

5400 LICENSES AND PERMITS
401 CMB & Liquor Licenses 1,900$             2,555$             2,025$             2,150$             2,375$             2,000$             
402 Animal Licenses 726                  700                  736                  706                  624                  605                  
403 Building & Zoning Permits 37,247             23,173             24,202             16,946             23,056             8,938               
404 Camping & Boating Permits 1,789               1,248               1,322               585                  440                  880                  
405 Micellaneous Permits 2,420               3,600               4,240               3,180               3,450               3,610               
406 Contractors Licenses 5,500               5,410               4,030               3,450               3,330               3,350               

Subtotal LICENSES AND PERMITS 49,582$          36,685$          36,554$          27,016$          33,275$          19,383$          

5500 CHARGES FOR SERVICES
501 Sale of Cemetery Lots 3,550$             7,220$             5,340$             14,435$          7,470$             7,800$             
502 Cemetery Charges 25,790             12,885             35,625             24,395             25,695             26,665             
503 Auditorium Rent 3,547               3,890               3,445               3,340               4,235               3,980               
504 Memorial Hall Rent 4,285               3,830               4,650               4,085               3,925               4,190               
506 Swimming Pool Fees 4,308               4,210               4,340               -                   213                  -                   
520 Animal Control Charges 1,034               3,808               2,426               8,876               7,952               7,787               

Probation Monitoring
533 Drug Screening 1,300               2,385               

Subtotal CHARGES FOR SERVICES 42,514$          35,843$          55,826$          55,131$          50,790$          52,807$          

5600 FINES AND FEES
601 Police Fines & Fees 95,809$          114,900$        98,824$          127,389$        112,782$        112,641$        
602 Pet Adoption Fees 200                  -                   -                   -                   989                  -                   
603 Library Fines & Fees 3,935               2,784               2,934               746                  2,668               

Subtotal FINES AND FEES 96,009$          118,835$        101,608$        130,323$        114,517$        115,309$        

5700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS
701 Interest 30,259$          25,114$          22,095$          22,656$          20,447$          12,896$          

84



Fund #01
REVENUES

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

5800 MISCELLANEOUS
801 Miscellaneous 19,334$          10,154$          6,982$             14,817$          20,605$          21,540$          
802 Reimbursed Expense 34,132             28,926             46,394             7,698               15,812             27,063             
803 Council Scholarship 250                  250                  240                  -                   280                  450                  
809 Cancelled Encumberance -                   -                   -                   
830 Transfer In from Electric 600,000          628,500          743,800          186,000          84,750             90,000             
831 Transer In from Sewer 39,500             84,500             77,900             39,000             39,000             41,000             
832 Transfer In from Refuse -                   -                   -                   -                   
833 Transfer In from Water 45,000             30,000             -                   38,000             41,000             40,000             
839 Transfer in from Library -                   20,182             2,811               963                  

Reimb - Utility Billing Admin -                   312,000          338,144          326,186          
Reimb - Mechanic/Repair Fee -                   45,000             47,151             55,236             

841 COPS Fast Police Grant -                   -                   
843 Federal Grants -                   -                   

Subtotal MISCELLANEOUS 738,216$        802,511$        878,127$        643,478$        586,742$        601,475$        

5900 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS
901 Sale of Fixed Assets -$                     1,750$             6,025$             4,600$             6,000$             

TOTAL GENERAL FUND RECEIPTS 2,246,876$     2,364,941$     2,393,923$     2,210,457$     2,237,360$     2,294,991$     

85



Fund #01
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
By Category

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

7100. PERSONNEL SERVICES
101 Salaries 1,546,463$   1,702,235$   1,611,974$   1,482,646$   1,466,359$   1,480,558$   
102 Salaries (Overtime) 31,119           62,384           39,893           55,101           64,243           78,519           
108 Firemen Training 4,002             3,470             2,710             4,320             2,185             3,820             
109 Fire Runs 15,620           17,900           25,550           18,250           22,200           33,250           
111 Firemen Life Insurance -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
112 Animal Control 10,655           12,880           13,755           893                -                      -                      

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,607,859$   1,798,869$   1,693,882$   1,561,209$   1,554,987$   1,596,147$   

7200. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
201 Communications 22,125$         22,344$         21,913$         24,089$         24,769$         28,580$         
202 Utilities 37,653           37,265           32,280           19,748           24,220           45,159           
203 Dues & Memberships 3,945             3,146             4,771             4,014             5,099             5,468             
204 Insurance 42,923           62,528           59,601           59,730           64,150           70,191           
205 Education, Meetings & Travel 14,699           11,929           10,451           13,893           18,202           17,805           
206 Professional Services 287,732         121,810         247,908         165,100         126,819         115,676         
207 Rentals 3,151             7,190             2,809             11,426           5,026             6,713             
208 Printing & Advertising 6,135             5,264             3,296             2,901             3,353             4,579             
209 Maint of Machinery & Equip 8,325             15,893           15,562           8,350             9,544             4,295             
210 Maint of Buildings/Grounds 11,037           5,447             3,728             15,836           6,333             14,021           
211 Memorial Hall Utilities 2,583             2,543             2,718             1,187             2,488             2,593             
215 Prisoner Care 10,770           16,532           18,534           17,181           14,597           29,934           
216 Maintenance of Fire Truck 120                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
217 Memorial Hall Custodial 4,553             4,541             4,763             4,500             4,500             4,500             
218 Housing Demolition -                      -                      -                      -                      16,878           -                      
219 Grave Openings 21,055           23,830           20,197           22,575           22,058           25,055           
220 Other Contractual 23,190           29,231           45,366           37,344           33,385           44,336           
221 Neighborhood Revitalization -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 499,996$      369,493$      493,897$      407,873$      381,419$      418,906$      

7300. COMMODITIES
301 Office Supplies 6,774$           6,535$           7,911$           11,243$         11,304$         9,274$           
302 Clothing & Personal Supplies 3,288             5,116             2,134             5,433             2,821             8,266             
303 Chemical/Seed/Fertilizer 25,777           20,226           22,649           10,062           13,752           15,310           
304 Machine Parts & Supplies 23,867           32,297           23,881           20,030           49,922           56,445           
305 Building Material & Supplies 29,602           32,063           22,474           12,150           12,996           17,778           
306 Construction Materials -                      -                      -                      485                315                -                      
307 Apparatus & Tools 6,288             8,652             9,368             5,730             5,371             9,256             
309 Motor Fuels & Lubricants 34,029           44,390           45,751           28,402           53,419           52,667           
311 Memorial Hall Miscellaneous 15,124           656                120                179                2,603             870                
312 Books & Periodicals -                      17,475           17,096           14,471           11,253           11,176           
313 Narcotic Canine 1,656             1,186             1,335             -                      -                      -                      
314 Computer Software 316                -                      599                -                      1,037             408                
316 Fire Truck Equipment & Parts 2,224             2,522             2,124             3,539             6,799             -                      
317 Food (Not for Resale) -                      -                      -                      1,186             2,711             5,394             
320 Other Commodities 3,016             9,152             10,403           6,080             24,665           24,721           

TOTAL COMMODITIES 151,961$      180,270$      165,845$      118,988$      198,967$      211,565$      

86



Fund #01
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
By Category

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

7400. CAPITAL OUTLAY
401 Building & Fixed Equipment 4,292$           -$                    (1,180)$          -$                    -$                    1,644$           
402 Improvements Non-Buildings 7,201             240                2,167             11,754           -                      -                      
403 Office Furniture & Equipment -                      8,875             6,790             60                   3,635             22,585           
404 Vehicles -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
405 Operational/Construction Equip -                      -                      4,857             -                      -                      1,731             
407 Other Equipment 4,170             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
409 Leases 1,793             -                      552                2,207             -                      2,345             
410 City Hall Improvements -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
413 Computer Equip & Software 974                -                      1,738             7,338             -                      1,979             
430 Headstone Restoration -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 18,430$         9,115$           14,924$         21,359$         3,635$           30,284$         

7700. OTHER EXPENSES
704 Election Costs -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
705 Chamber of Commerce 15,000           -                      15,000           15,000           -                      -                      
706 Fireworks Display 1,900             5,074             5,028             5,268             6,878             6,097             

Jamboree Donation -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
713 Scholarship 250                300                250                200                280                500                
726 Library 16                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
727 Old Stone Church 230                436                -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 17,396$         5,810$           20,278$         20,468$         7,158$           6,597$           

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 2,295,642$   2,363,557$   2,388,827$   2,129,896$   2,146,166$   2,263,498$   

87



Fund # 02
Water

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 3,847$        25,873$      (2,047)$       43,575$      176,093$    206,190$    

REVENUE
510 Sales and Charges 738,137$    748,638$    741,505$    805,842$    539,336$    558,614$    
511 Wholesale Water 236,647      225,223      
512 Bulk Water Sales 11,877        11,693        17,128        20,087        14,295        18,676        
513 New Utility Services 5,250           -                   800              1,500           750              

Rate Increases
Other Charges 3,286           

801 Miscellaneous Revenue 2,565           2,866           76                551              1,200           
802 Reimbursed Expense 4,994           591              -                   8,785           593              
808 Water Protection Tax 3,436           4,338           4,313           3,426           3,322           3,469           
813 Tower Lease 7,695           11,592        11,592        11,592        11,592        11,592        
852 Loan Proceeds -                   5,967           -                   
901 Sale of Fixed Assets -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL REVENUE 773,954$    785,685$    778,699$    851,783$    806,986$    818,325$    

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 777,801$    811,558$    776,652$    895,358$    983,078$    #########

EXPENSES
Personnel

Salaries 190,621$    165,349$    177,303$    137,261$    133,464$    164,685$    
Health Insurance 30,642        34,277        32,581        19,236        24,545        29,232        
All Other Benefits 30,700        42,559        35,755        27,352        24,487        37,696        
   Subtotal 251,963      242,185      245,639      183,849      182,496      231,612      

Operating Expenses
Utilities 77,703        86,258        81,483        85,849        83,238        53,708        
Treatment Chemicals 130,132      171,378      138,701      137,076      163,855      128,870      
Professional Services 4,495           13,501        12,481        3,649           3,791           118,992      
Machine Parts & Supplies 6,996           14,453        19,320        12,124        14,361        19,612        
State Taxes & Fees 13,738        38,827        37,603        40,151        14,290        18,533        
All Other Expenses 124,370      128,983      98,055        81,441        96,101        113,224      
   Subtotal 357,434      453,400      387,642      360,290      375,635      452,939      

Meters Lease -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital Outlay 10,548        19,989        34,813        -                   26,584        45,432        

   Subtotal 10,548        19,989        34,813        -               26,584        45,432        
Debt Service 64,983        64,983        64,983        32,491        -                   -                   
Transfers 67,000        30,000        -                   65,235        104,827      99,827        
Overhead Fees -                   -                   -                   77,400        87,346        72,412        
TOTAL EXPENSES 751,928$    810,557$    733,076$    719,266$    776,889$    902,222$    

Revenues Over Expenditures 22,026$      (24,872)$     45,623$      132,517$    30,097$      (83,898)$     

ENDING BALANCE 25,873$      1,001$        43,575$      176,093$    206,190$    122,292$    
as a percentage of expenses 3.4% 0.1% 5.9% 24.5% 26.5% 13.6%

88



Fund # 03
Electric

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 757,966$          1,036,152$      852,395$       216,891$          443,463$       420,357$         

REVENUE
Sales and Charges 3,271,573$      3,529,088$      3,612,738$    3,476,687$      3,288,092$    3,687,768$     
Penalties and Fees 94,327              91,761              93,430            90,238              92,236            102,774           
Utility Deposits 58,375              53,075              53,450            58,500              55,998            49,950             
Sales Taxes Collected 97,081              106,511            113,888         109,636            105,189         122,673           
Transfers In/Reimb Exp 72,708              4,356                23,347            328,666            162,507         4,512               
Miscellaneous 43,857              10,184              51,369            19,236              11,755            9,100               

TOTAL REVENUE 3,637,921$      3,794,975$      3,948,224$    4,082,963$      3,715,777$    3,976,776$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 4,395,887$      4,831,127$      4,800,618$    4,299,853$      4,159,240$    4,397,133$     

EXPENSES
Personnel

Salaries 251,846$          366,594$          305,063$       335,245$          361,166$       358,543$         
Health Insurance 34,263              22,533              21,279            31,187              43,381            49,254             
All Other Benefits 58,338              69,144              65,635            64,783              67,790            70,618             
   Subtotal 344,447            458,271            391,978         431,215            472,337         478,415           

Operating Expenses
Purchased Power/Trans/Fuel 1,776,582        1,973,340        2,061,424      1,944,704        2,039,191      2,091,062        
Insurance 56,487              70,219              72,910            75,958              61,630            57,887             
Professional Services 12,880              26,794              39,886            16,245              19,527            26,586             
Bldg & Mach Parts & Supplies 41,356              102,926            94,023            63,975              71,093            85,096             
Motor Fuel 15,509              16,415              20,770            16,406              7,730              7,644               
State & Local Taxes 105,248            123,080            131,481         125,583            122,340         143,369           
Deposit Refunds/Interest 51,023              52,829              52,955            62,426              56,838            54,311             
Other Expenses 87,708              105,832            137,694         72,879              101,043         106,640           
   Subtotal 2,146,793        2,471,435        2,611,142      2,378,175        2,479,392      2,572,596       

Capital Expenses
Poles/Transformers/Wire 14,010              46,295              39,407            32,366              40,995            37,290             
Vehicles/Equipment 109,786            -                    161,122         -                    7,195              -                   
All Other 48,438              8,829                14,647            309,434            10,361            31,160             
   Subtotal 172,234            55,124              215,176         341,800            58,551            68,450             

Debt Service -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                   
Transfers/Other Assistance 696,261            908,884            913,300         503,000            518,000         512,000           
Loan for Street Project -                    -                    452,132         -                    -                  -                   
Overhead Fees -                    -                    -                  202,200            210,603         233,806           
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,359,735$      3,893,714$      4,583,727$    3,856,390$      3,738,883$    3,865,268$     

Revenues Over Expenditures 278,186$          (98,739)$          (635,504)$      226,573$          (23,106)$        111,509$         
  Less Transfers 974,447           810,145           706,581         400,907           494,894         623,509          

ENDING BALANCE 1,036,152$      937,413$         216,891$       443,463$         420,357$       531,865$         
as a percentage of expenses 30.8% 24.1% 4.7% 11.5% 11.2% 13.8%

89



Fund # 04
Employee Benefits

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 127$           (21,437)$     1,000$        28,832$      52,082$      20,523$      

REVENUE 19.923       22.433       
101 Ad Valorem Tax 430,979$    456,689$    467,468$    424,863$    473,228$    523,863$    
102 Delinquent Tax 8,373          16,378         16,611        22,489        12,531        28,449        
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 45,408        43,415         45,617        47,281        47,063        50,269        
215 Recreational Vehicle Tax 649              771              658              736              595              710              
216 16 / 20 M Vehicle Tax -                   -                    -                   244              463              1,755           
802 Reimbursed Expense -                   8,456           -                   4,400           10,579        

Reimb Health Ins - Water 10,478        24,545        29,232        
Reimb Health Ins - Elec 15,268        43,381        49,254        
Reimb Health Ins - Sewer 6,837           15,067        19,061        

830 Transfer from  Electric (General) 1,000          53,686         45,000        55,000        80                
Transfer from Rec Emp Ben Fund -                    -                   12,653        1,457           

TOTAL REVENUE 486,409$   579,395$    575,353$    600,249$    628,910$    702,673$    

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 486,536$   557,958$    576,353$    629,081$    680,993$    723,196$    

EXPENSES
By Object

103 FICA 133,530$    142,878$    134,895$    129,545$    129,418$    131,877$    
104 KPERS 91,944        122,168       122,850      125,530      131,130      150,533      
105 Health Insurance 229,657      248,531       235,306      244,165      332,306      251,426      
106 Workers' Compensation 47,739        56,900         45,597        46,622        41,541        52,817        
107 Unemployment Insurance 5,103          10,757         8,528           2,956           1,778           13,449        
206 Professional Services -                   -                    -               692              296              
220 Other Contractual 345              395              
710 Cash Basis Reserve -                   

Exceptional Employee Payouts
Reimbursement to 125/HRA 27,488        24,000        15,000        

TOTAL EXPENSES 507,973$   581,234$    547,521$    576,998$    660,469$    615,497$    

Revenues Over Expenditures (21,564)$     (1,839)$        27,832$      23,251$      (31,559)$     87,175$      

ENDING BALANCE (21,437)$    (23,276)$     28,832$      52,082$      20,523$      107,698$    
as a percentage of expenses -4.2% -4.0% 5.3% 9.0% 3.1% 17.5%

90



Fund # 09
Industrial

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 31,486$         33,098$      45,540$   48,169$   61,237$     35,121$     

REVENUE
101 Ad Valorem Tax 7,948$           (2)$              5$             (6)$            -$               5$              
102 Delinquent Tax 189                 252             157           132           12              7                 
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 1,120             911             179           
215 Recreational Vehicle Tax 17                   15               1               
801 Miscellaneous (Land Lease) 16,130           15,185        18,184     21,715     24,306       14,793       
802 Reimbursed Expense (7,473)            -                   5,600         
811 Lease Payment (JTC Oil) 2,600        12,000       13,000       
880 150th Birthday Celebration

Sale of Fixed Assets/Real Estate 12,000       
TOTAL REVENUE 17,931$         16,361$      18,526$   24,441$   36,318$     45,405$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 49,417$         49,459$      64,066$   72,611$   97,556$     80,526$     

EXPENSES
By Object

204 Insurance -$                    -$                -$              -$              1,269$       1,814$       
206 Professional Services 7,071             150             1,933        5,243        1,878         1,979         
208 Printing and Advertising 3,327         1,110         
220 Other Contractual Services 3,734             3,365          12,159     3,530        1,218         2,642         
320 Other Commodities 5,514             405             1,805        -            

Loan to Golf Course for Zoysia -                  -              -            -            42,742       
Purchase of Land 12,000       

711 Lease Payments to the State -                  -              -            2,600        12,000       11,000       
TOTAL EXPENSES 16,319$         3,920$        15,896$   11,373$   62,434$     30,546$     

Revenues Over Expenditures 1,612$           12,441$      2,630$     13,068$   (26,116)$   14,859$     

ENDING BALANCE 33,098$         45,539$      48,169$   61,237$   35,121$     49,980$     
as a percentage of expenses 202.8% 1161.7% 303.0% 538.4% 56.3% 163.6%

91



Fund # 12
Street Improvement

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 65,903$       14,074$      1,000$       4,662$       99,272$     122,076$   

REVENUE
210 Gasoline Tax 113,722$    121,259$   117,273$   115,076$   111,162$   113,542$   
211 County Connecting Links 5,100           5,100          5,100          5,100          5,100          5,100          
403 Building & Zoning Permits -                    -                   

Loan From Electric
802 Reimbursed Expense 896               1,556          15               
803 Transfer from Electric -                    31,231        17,000       -                   -                   

Reimb from CIP-Streets 65,786       3,831          
901 Sale of Fixed Assets

TOTAL REVENUE 119,718$    159,146$   139,373$   185,962$   120,094$   118,657$   

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 185,621$    173,220$   140,373$   190,624$   219,365$   240,733$   

EXPENSES
By Object

Contractual Services 59,852         41,724        46,017$     8,134$       2,936$       7,067$       
Machine Parts 11,855         14,561        10,367       11,852       -              -              
Street Materials 35,898         45,895        50,958       53,437       1,089          -              
Fuel 6,510           10,255        10,125       17,930       -              -              
Other Commodities 3,149           2,977          737             -              35,039       37,073       
Equipment -                -               -              -              -              69,408       
Chip/Seal -                -               -              -              58,225       -              
Other Capital Outlay 13,020         56,808        17,506       -              -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 171,547$    172,220$   135,711$   91,353$     97,289$     113,548$   

Revenues Over Expenditures (51,829)$     (13,074)$    3,662$       94,609$     22,805$     5,110$       

ENDING BALANCE 14,074$       1,000$        4,662$       99,272$     122,076$   127,186$   
as a percentage of expenses 8.2% 0.6% 3.4% 108.7% 125.5% 112.0%

92



Fund # 13
Bond & Interest

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 125,066$     123,250$   64,375$    61,002$      96,892$     88,617$     

REVENUE 10.945       10.449      
101 Ad Valorem Tax 152,401$     128,078$   190,698$  233,685$    220,616$  231,834$   
102 Delinquent Tax 2,431            5,239          5,110         8,016           5,693         13,237        
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 11,891         14,301        13,507      17,928        24,058       24,226        
215 Recreational Vehicle Tax 165               265              190            290              319             853             
216 16/20M Vehicle Tax 34                
826 Transfer from CIP-Streets 5,000           19,159        
831 Transfer In from Sewer 200,000       200,000      200,000    310,000      434,000     435,000     
833 Transfer In from Water 27,235        59,827       59,827        

TOTAL REVENUE 440,094$     347,883$   409,504$ 602,154$    744,512$  784,510$   

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 565,160$     471,133$   473,879$ 663,155$    841,404$  873,127$   

EXPENSES
By Object

221 Neighborhood Revitalization -$                  -$                 -$               -$                 -$                -$                 
Police Station Debt
Main Street Project Debt

501 Bond Principal 165,000       124,000      136,000    282,000      444,000     457,000     
502 Bond Interest 276,910       282,758      276,878    284,263      308,788     296,495     

TOTAL EXPENSES 441,910$     406,758$   412,878$ 566,263$    752,788$  753,495$   

Revenues Over Expenditures (1,816)$        (58,875)$    (3,374)$     35,890$      (8,275)$      31,015$     

ENDING BALANCE 123,250$     64,375$      61,002$    96,892$      88,617$     119,632$   
as a percentage of expenses 27.9% 15.8% 14.8% 17.1% 11.8% 15.9%

93



Fund # 16
Sewer

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 386,964$        449,525$        428,138$        361,440$        335,552$        383,948$        

REVENUE
510 Sales/Charges 778,941$        775,883$        771,765$        748,972$        825,379$        818,794$        

Rate Increase
513 New Utility Services 400                  700                  350                  -                       350                  
802 Reimbursed Expense 3,060              339                  6,053              1,500              
901 Sale of Fixed Assets 739                  

TOTAL REVENUE 782,401$       776,922$       772,115$       748,972$       831,432$       821,383$       

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 1,169,365$    1,226,447$    1,200,253$    1,110,413$    1,166,984$    1,205,331$    

EXPENSES
By Object

Salaries & Wages 98,950$          123,915$        114,949$        107,078$        111,171$        146,542$        
Utilities 25,852            40,380            35,475            33,363            32,187            52,833            
Prof Services & Contract Maint 23,681            33,248            11,752            32,067            3,096              16,418            
Chemicals 17,548            9,477              9,566              13,801            7,054              4,875              
Parts & Supplies 32,503            24,954            25,489            18,013            27,415            14,596            
All Other Capital Outlay 17,213            8,625              88,161            -                   -                   4,463              
Debt Service 250,714          250,714          250,713          125,357          -                   -                   
Phase II Loan -                   
Transfer to Bond & Interest 200,000          200,000          200,000          310,000          434,000          435,000          
Transfer to General Fund 39,500            84,500            77,900            39,000            39,000            41,000            
Administrative Fee -                   -                   -                   62,400            71,629            56,792            
Mechanic/Repair Fee -                   -                   -                   15,000            15,717            18,412            
All Other Expenses 13,879            20,849            24,808            18,782            41,767            56,989            

TOTAL EXPENSES 719,840$       796,662$       838,813$       774,861$       783,036$       847,921$       

Revenues Over Expenditures 62,561$          (19,740)$        (66,698)$        (25,889)$        48,396$          (26,538)$        

ENDING BALANCE 449,525$       429,785$       361,440$       335,552$       383,948$       357,409$       
as a percentage of expenses 62.4% 53.9% 43.1% 43.3% 49.0% 42.2%

94



Fund # 24
Capital Improvements - General

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 16,622$     26,139$       1,075$      3,790$        357,727$     210,479$     

REVENUE
801 Miscellaneous 700$          -$             -$              -$                 326$             -$                  
830 Transfer In from Electric Fund 75,000       75,000         27,500      380,000      118,000       135,000       

Sweeper Loan Proceeds 95,000          
Grant Receipts (Non-CDBG) 40,900          
Reimbursed Expenses 12,164        35,000          

TOTAL REVENUE 80,071$     77,075$       27,500$   392,164$    248,326$     175,900$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 96,693$     103,214$    28,575$   395,955$    606,053$     386,379$     

EXPENSES
By Object

206 Professional Services -$                78,386$       12,164$   -$                 -$                  -$                  
401 Building & Fixed Equipment -             -                12,620      5,408           3,023            
402 Improvements Other Than Buildin -             -                4,060           
404 Vehicles 51,275       23,753         21,450        27,000          30,759          
405 Operational Construction Equip 9,534            
407 Other Equipment 19,279       -                -               23,922          

Pool Planning 4,670           
Mold Abatement/Repairs 2,640           16,752          
Library Settlement Repair 35,000          
Sports Complex Playground 43,007          

` New Section in Cemetery -               2,136            
RICE Catalytic Converters -               242,036       
Relay Switches at the Power Plant 13,478          
LMI Survey 13,142          
Sports Complex Building
Sports Complex Upgrades
Street Sweeper 91,981          
Repair Garage at Cabin 2,765            
JB Park Improvements (Bridges, Shelters)
Irrigation System at Sports Complex -               
New Trailer for Mowing Crews
West Lake Road Repairs
Restrooms on Golf Course
Clubhouse Improvements
Repairs to City Hall - Outside
Trail Improvements Planning
Chip Seal Complex Parking Lot

TOTAL EXPENSES 70,554$     102,139$    24,784$   38,228$      395,573$     158,961$     

Revenues Over Expenditures (70,554)$   (102,139)$   2,716$      353,937$    (147,248)$    16,939$       

ENDING BALANCE 26,139$     1,075$         3,790$     357,727$    210,479$     227,419$     

95



Fund # 25
Capital Improvements - Streets

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE -$                     -$                 0$                0$                183,960$   19,159$     

REVENUE
Federal Grant Proceeds 496,945$   3,055$        -$                 
Donations
Interest 1,151          
Sale of Fixed Assets
Temporary Bond Notes 99,964        
Bond Proceeds 566,559     

830 Transfer In from Electric Fund 452,132     
TOTAL REVENUE -$                     -$                 949,077$   570,765$   -$                99,964$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE -$                     -$                 949,077$   570,765$   183,960$   119,123$   

EXPENSES
By Object

206 Professional Services -$                     -$                 -$                 (6,357)$      -$                 33,865$     
220 Other Contractrual 15,359        121             
402 Improv Other Than Buildings 949,077     3,691          

Reimb to Street Improv Fund 65,786        3,831          
Reimb to Electric Fund 291,162     160,970     
Reimb to CIP Gen 12,164        
Reimb to Bond and Interest 5,000          19,159        
Council Room Project
Police Station Project

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                     -$                 949,077$   386,805$   164,801$   53,144$     

ENDING BALANCE -$                     -$                 0$                183,960$   19,159$     65,979$     

96



Fund # 26
Capital Improvements - Sewer

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE -$                 -$              -$                -$                -$                  (301,209)$    

REVENUE
Federal Grant Proceeds -$            -$                -$                  
Transfer In from Sewer
SRLF Proceeds 1,030,669    

TOTAL REVENUE -$                 -$              -$                -$                -$                  1,030,669$ 

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE -$                 -$              -$                -$                -$                  729,460$     

EXPENSES
By Object

206 Professional Services -$                 -$              -$                -$                92,658$       112,289$     
220 Other Contractual 600               
401 Building & Fixed Equipment 540,354       
402 Improvements Other Than Buildings 208,551       208,000       

Interest 8,088            
Vehicles
Other Equipment

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                 -$              -$                -$                301,209$     869,331$     

ENDING BALANCE -$                 -$              -$                -$                (301,209)$   (139,872)$   

97



Fund # 27
Capital Improvements - Grants/Police Station

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE -$               -$              1,180$     0$             -$                260,005$    

REVENUE
Federal Grant Proceeds 50,432$   -$              -$                -$                  
Transfer In from Library Fund 20,020     
Donations 500              
Sale of Fixed Assets 40,000         
Bond Proceeds 590,000     600,036      
Reimbursed Expenses 3,318           

TOTAL REVENUE -$              -$              70,452$   -$              590,000$   643,854$    

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE -$              -$              71,632$   0$             590,000$   903,859$    

EXPENSES
By Object

401 Building & Fixed Equipment -$               -$              71,632$   -$              -$                -$                  
402 Improvements Other Than Buildings
404 Vehicles
407 Other Equipment

Council Room Project
Police Station Project 329,995     51,773         
Parking Lot
Bond Principal 590,000      
Bond Interest 10,036         

TOTAL EXPENSES -$              -$              71,632$   -$              329,995$   651,809$    

ENDING BALANCE -$              -$              0$             0$             260,005$   252,050$    

98



Fund #01
General Fund

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 103,364$        54,598$          25,728$          30,824$          111,385$       202,579$       

REVENUES
Property & Vechicle Taxes 511,638$        575,434$        501,209$       547,203$       600,121$       598,701$       
Sales & Liquor Taxes 611,940          591,694          628,641          642,306          661,386          722,409          
Grants 2,429               14,049             11,391            10,791            22,355            22,909            
Franchise Fees 164,289          164,775          156,721          125,529          143,127          143,103          
Admin. & Internal Fees -                   -                   -                  357,000          385,295          381,422          
Licenses & Permits 49,582             36,685             36,554            27,016            33,275            19,383            
Charges for Services 42,514             35,843             55,826            55,131            50,790            52,807            
Fines & Fees 96,009             118,835          101,608          130,323          114,517          115,309          
Interest 30,259             25,114             22,095            22,656            20,447            12,896            
Transfers 684,500          763,182          824,511          263,963          164,750          171,000          
Sale of Assets -                   -                   1,750              6,025              4,600              6,000              
Miscellaneous 53,716             39,329             53,616            22,515            36,697            49,053            

TOTAL REVENUES 2,246,876$    2,364,941$    2,393,923$    2,210,457$    2,237,360$    2,294,991$    
-                       

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 2,350,240$    2,419,539$    2,419,651$    2,241,281$    2,348,745$    2,497,570$    

EXPENSES
By Program

101 General Administration 601,629$        507,121$        528,084$       554,617$       565,698$       481,284$       
102 Code Enforcement (2013) 100,665          82,314             81,789            -                  13,536            74,360            
103 Police 917,716          996,466          906,114          853,469          882,647          901,297          
104 John Brown Cabin 41,725             43,398             41,507            39,328            35,997            35,324            
105 Streets & Alleys 266,642          332,091          284,437          235,595          258,196          257,063          
106 Swimming Pool 33,417             34,669             38,954            38,006            7,054              2,285              
107 Properties & Maintenance 108,378          119,784          117,328          121,049          97,984            200,238          
108 Fire Dept (Sal-2011,All-2013) 21,630             18,895             36,370            22,756            31,184            59,968            
109 Municipal Court Services 77,330             98,426             120,656          123,576          113,936          106,962          
110 Levees & Stormwater 126,510          14,607             121,175          28,176            7,209              9,061              
111 Library -                   115,786          112,413          113,324          132,725          135,656          

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,295,642$    2,363,557$    2,388,827$    2,129,896$    2,146,166$    2,263,498$    

Revenues Over Expenditures (48,766)$         1,384$             5,096$            80,561$          91,194$          31,493$          

ENDING BALANCE 54,598$          55,982$          30,824$          111,385$       202,579$       234,072$       
as a percentage of expenses 2.4% 2.4% 1.3% 5.2% 9.4% 10.3%

99



Fund #01
REVENUES

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

5100 TAXES 22.365            25.375            
101 Ad Valorem Tax 452,215$        510,994$        432,233$        477,203$        535,302$        508,064$        
102 Delinquent Ad Valorem Tax 8,877               17,249             17,886             23,241             13,424             31,075             

Subtotal TAXES 461,092$        528,243$        450,119$        500,444$        548,726$        539,139$        

5200 INTERGOVERNMENTAL
201 City Sales Tax 242,597$        232,888$        241,692$        245,948$        254,261$        261,754$        
202 County Sales Tax 294,913          286,796          307,604          310,121          323,558          352,431          
203 City Comp Use Tax 68,094             66,085             75,716             83,658             35,203             48,282             
204 County Comp Use Tax 44,954             57,041             
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 49,826             46,375             50,360             45,790             50,310             56,778             
206 Liquor Tax 6,336               5,926               3,630               2,580               3,409               2,900               
215 RV Tax 720                  816                  731                  696                  657                  802                  
216 16/20M Vechile Tax -                   -                   -                   273                  428                  476                  
217 Commercial Motor Vehicle Tax 1,506               
220 Grant Receipts (Non-CDBG) -                   12,398             10,495             9,454               22,355             22,909             
221 DARE/COPS Police Grant -                   -                   -                   -                   
231 John Brown Cabin 2,429               1,652               897                  1,337               
241 Special County Sales Tax -                   -                   -                   

Subtotal INTERGOVERNMENTAL 664,914$        652,934$        691,123$        699,856$        735,136$        804,879$        

5300 FRANCHISE FEES
301 Gas Company Franchise Fees 111,261$        97,515$          87,647$          67,758$          86,203$          89,562$          
302 Cable TV Franchise Fees 35,744             43,201             35,085             27,253             20,500             28,356             
303 Telephone Franchise Fees 16,303             22,582             29,596             28,424             34,325             22,566             
304 Electric Franchise Fees 981                  1,477               4,394               2,093               2,100               2,619               

Subtotal FRANCHISE FEES 164,289$        164,775$        156,721$        125,529$        143,127$        143,103$        

5400 LICENSES AND PERMITS
401 CMB & Liquor Licenses 1,900$             2,555$             2,025$             2,150$             2,375$             2,000$             
402 Animal Licenses 726                  700                  736                  706                  624                  605                  
403 Building & Zoning Permits 37,247             23,173             24,202             16,946             23,056             8,938               
404 Camping & Boating Permits 1,789               1,248               1,322               585                  440                  880                  
405 Micellaneous Permits 2,420               3,600               4,240               3,180               3,450               3,610               
406 Contractors Licenses 5,500               5,410               4,030               3,450               3,330               3,350               

Subtotal LICENSES AND PERMITS 49,582$          36,685$          36,554$          27,016$          33,275$          19,383$          

5500 CHARGES FOR SERVICES
501 Sale of Cemetery Lots 3,550$             7,220$             5,340$             14,435$          7,470$             7,800$             
502 Cemetery Charges 25,790             12,885             35,625             24,395             25,695             26,665             
503 Auditorium Rent 3,547               3,890               3,445               3,340               4,235               3,980               
504 Memorial Hall Rent 4,285               3,830               4,650               4,085               3,925               4,190               
506 Swimming Pool Fees 4,308               4,210               4,340               -                   213                  -                   
520 Animal Control Charges 1,034               3,808               2,426               8,876               7,952               7,787               

Probation Monitoring
533 Drug Screening 1,300               2,385               

Subtotal CHARGES FOR SERVICES 42,514$          35,843$          55,826$          55,131$          50,790$          52,807$          

5600 FINES AND FEES
601 Police Fines & Fees 95,809$          114,900$        98,824$          127,389$        112,782$        112,641$        
602 Pet Adoption Fees 200                  -                   -                   -                   989                  -                   
603 Library Fines & Fees 3,935               2,784               2,934               746                  2,668               

Subtotal FINES AND FEES 96,009$          118,835$        101,608$        130,323$        114,517$        115,309$        

5700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS
701 Interest 30,259$          25,114$          22,095$          22,656$          20,447$          12,896$          

100



Fund #01
REVENUES

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

5800 MISCELLANEOUS
801 Miscellaneous 19,334$          10,154$          6,982$             14,817$          20,605$          21,540$          
802 Reimbursed Expense 34,132             28,926             46,394             7,698               15,812             27,063             
803 Council Scholarship 250                  250                  240                  -                   280                  450                  
809 Cancelled Encumberance -                   -                   -                   
830 Transfer In from Electric 600,000          628,500          743,800          186,000          84,750             90,000             
831 Transer In from Sewer 39,500             84,500             77,900             39,000             39,000             41,000             
832 Transfer In from Refuse -                   -                   -                   -                   
833 Transfer In from Water 45,000             30,000             -                   38,000             41,000             40,000             
839 Transfer in from Library -                   20,182             2,811               963                  

Reimb - Utility Billing Admin -                   312,000          338,144          326,186          
Reimb - Mechanic/Repair Fee -                   45,000             47,151             55,236             

841 COPS Fast Police Grant -                   -                   
843 Federal Grants -                   -                   

Subtotal MISCELLANEOUS 738,216$        802,511$        878,127$        643,478$        586,742$        601,475$        

5900 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS
901 Sale of Fixed Assets -$                     1,750$             6,025$             4,600$             6,000$             

TOTAL GENERAL FUND RECEIPTS 2,246,876$     2,364,941$     2,393,923$     2,210,457$     2,237,360$     2,294,991$     

101



Fund #01
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
By Category

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

7100. PERSONNEL SERVICES
101 Salaries 1,546,463$   1,702,235$   1,611,974$   1,482,646$   1,466,359$   1,480,558$   
102 Salaries (Overtime) 31,119           62,384           39,893           55,101           64,243           78,519           
108 Firemen Training 4,002             3,470             2,710             4,320             2,185             3,820             
109 Fire Runs 15,620           17,900           25,550           18,250           22,200           33,250           
111 Firemen Life Insurance -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
112 Animal Control 10,655           12,880           13,755           893                -                      -                      

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,607,859$   1,798,869$   1,693,882$   1,561,209$   1,554,987$   1,596,147$   

7200. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
201 Communications 22,125$         22,344$         21,913$         24,089$         24,769$         28,580$         
202 Utilities 37,653           37,265           32,280           19,748           24,220           45,159           
203 Dues & Memberships 3,945             3,146             4,771             4,014             5,099             5,468             
204 Insurance 42,923           62,528           59,601           59,730           64,150           70,191           
205 Education, Meetings & Travel 14,699           11,929           10,451           13,893           18,202           17,805           
206 Professional Services 287,732         121,810         247,908         165,100         126,819         115,676         
207 Rentals 3,151             7,190             2,809             11,426           5,026             6,713             
208 Printing & Advertising 6,135             5,264             3,296             2,901             3,353             4,579             
209 Maint of Machinery & Equip 8,325             15,893           15,562           8,350             9,544             4,295             
210 Maint of Buildings/Grounds 11,037           5,447             3,728             15,836           6,333             14,021           
211 Memorial Hall Utilities 2,583             2,543             2,718             1,187             2,488             2,593             
215 Prisoner Care 10,770           16,532           18,534           17,181           14,597           29,934           
216 Maintenance of Fire Truck 120                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
217 Memorial Hall Custodial 4,553             4,541             4,763             4,500             4,500             4,500             
218 Housing Demolition -                      -                      -                      -                      16,878           -                      
219 Grave Openings 21,055           23,830           20,197           22,575           22,058           25,055           
220 Other Contractual 23,190           29,231           45,366           37,344           33,385           44,336           
221 Neighborhood Revitalization -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 499,996$      369,493$      493,897$      407,873$      381,419$      418,906$      

7300. COMMODITIES
301 Office Supplies 6,774$           6,535$           7,911$           11,243$         11,304$         9,274$           
302 Clothing & Personal Supplies 3,288             5,116             2,134             5,433             2,821             8,266             
303 Chemical/Seed/Fertilizer 25,777           20,226           22,649           10,062           13,752           15,310           
304 Machine Parts & Supplies 23,867           32,297           23,881           20,030           49,922           56,445           
305 Building Material & Supplies 29,602           32,063           22,474           12,150           12,996           17,778           
306 Construction Materials -                      -                      -                      485                315                -                      
307 Apparatus & Tools 6,288             8,652             9,368             5,730             5,371             9,256             
309 Motor Fuels & Lubricants 34,029           44,390           45,751           28,402           53,419           52,667           
311 Memorial Hall Miscellaneous 15,124           656                120                179                2,603             870                
312 Books & Periodicals -                      17,475           17,096           14,471           11,253           11,176           
313 Narcotic Canine 1,656             1,186             1,335             -                      -                      -                      
314 Computer Software 316                -                      599                -                      1,037             408                
316 Fire Truck Equipment & Parts 2,224             2,522             2,124             3,539             6,799             -                      
317 Food (Not for Resale) -                      -                      -                      1,186             2,711             5,394             
320 Other Commodities 3,016             9,152             10,403           6,080             24,665           24,721           

TOTAL COMMODITIES 151,961$      180,270$      165,845$      118,988$      198,967$      211,565$      

102



Fund #01
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
By Category

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

7400. CAPITAL OUTLAY
401 Building & Fixed Equipment 4,292$           -$                    (1,180)$          -$                    -$                    1,644$           
402 Improvements Non-Buildings 7,201             240                2,167             11,754           -                      -                      
403 Office Furniture & Equipment -                      8,875             6,790             60                   3,635             22,585           
404 Vehicles -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
405 Operational/Construction Equip -                      -                      4,857             -                      -                      1,731             
407 Other Equipment 4,170             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
409 Leases 1,793             -                      552                2,207             -                      2,345             
410 City Hall Improvements -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
413 Computer Equip & Software 974                -                      1,738             7,338             -                      1,979             
430 Headstone Restoration -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 18,430$         9,115$           14,924$         21,359$         3,635$           30,284$         

7700. OTHER EXPENSES
704 Election Costs -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
705 Chamber of Commerce 15,000           -                      15,000           15,000           -                      -                      
706 Fireworks Display 1,900             5,074             5,028             5,268             6,878             6,097             

Jamboree Donation -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
713 Scholarship 250                300                250                200                280                500                
726 Library 16                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
727 Old Stone Church 230                436                -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 17,396$         5,810$           20,278$         20,468$         7,158$           6,597$           

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 2,295,642$   2,363,557$   2,388,827$   2,129,896$   2,146,166$   2,263,498$   

103



Fund # 02
Water

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 3,847$        25,873$      (2,047)$       43,575$      176,093$    206,190$    

REVENUE
510 Sales and Charges 738,137$    748,638$    741,505$    805,842$    539,336$    558,614$    
511 Wholesale Water 236,647      225,223      
512 Bulk Water Sales 11,877        11,693        17,128        20,087        14,295        18,676        
513 New Utility Services 5,250           -                   800              1,500           750              

Rate Increases
Other Charges 3,286           

801 Miscellaneous Revenue 2,565           2,866           76                551              1,200           
802 Reimbursed Expense 4,994           591              -                   8,785           593              
808 Water Protection Tax 3,436           4,338           4,313           3,426           3,322           3,469           
813 Tower Lease 7,695           11,592        11,592        11,592        11,592        11,592        
852 Loan Proceeds -                   5,967           -                   
901 Sale of Fixed Assets -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL REVENUE 773,954$    785,685$    778,699$    851,783$    806,986$    818,325$    

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 777,801$    811,558$    776,652$    895,358$    983,078$    #########

EXPENSES
Personnel

Salaries 190,621$    165,349$    177,303$    137,261$    133,464$    164,685$    
Health Insurance 30,642        34,277        32,581        19,236        24,545        29,232        
All Other Benefits 30,700        42,559        35,755        27,352        24,487        37,696        
   Subtotal 251,963      242,185      245,639      183,849      182,496      231,612      

Operating Expenses
Utilities 77,703        86,258        81,483        85,849        83,238        53,708        
Treatment Chemicals 130,132      171,378      138,701      137,076      163,855      128,870      
Professional Services 4,495           13,501        12,481        3,649           3,791           118,992      
Machine Parts & Supplies 6,996           14,453        19,320        12,124        14,361        19,612        
State Taxes & Fees 13,738        38,827        37,603        40,151        14,290        18,533        
All Other Expenses 124,370      128,983      98,055        81,441        96,101        113,224      
   Subtotal 357,434      453,400      387,642      360,290      375,635      452,939      

Meters Lease -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital Outlay 10,548        19,989        34,813        -                   26,584        45,432        

   Subtotal 10,548        19,989        34,813        -               26,584        45,432        
Debt Service 64,983        64,983        64,983        32,491        -                   -                   
Transfers 67,000        30,000        -                   65,235        104,827      99,827        
Overhead Fees -                   -                   -                   77,400        87,346        72,412        
TOTAL EXPENSES 751,928$    810,557$    733,076$    719,266$    776,889$    902,222$    

Revenues Over Expenditures 22,026$      (24,872)$     45,623$      132,517$    30,097$      (83,898)$     

ENDING BALANCE 25,873$      1,001$        43,575$      176,093$    206,190$    122,292$    
as a percentage of expenses 3.4% 0.1% 5.9% 24.5% 26.5% 13.6%

104



Fund # 03
Electric

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 757,966$          1,036,152$      852,395$       216,891$          443,463$       420,357$         

REVENUE
Sales and Charges 3,271,573$      3,529,088$      3,612,738$    3,476,687$      3,288,092$    3,687,768$     
Penalties and Fees 94,327              91,761              93,430            90,238              92,236            102,774           
Utility Deposits 58,375              53,075              53,450            58,500              55,998            49,950             
Sales Taxes Collected 97,081              106,511            113,888         109,636            105,189         122,673           
Transfers In/Reimb Exp 72,708              4,356                23,347            328,666            162,507         4,512               
Miscellaneous 43,857              10,184              51,369            19,236              11,755            9,100               

TOTAL REVENUE 3,637,921$      3,794,975$      3,948,224$    4,082,963$      3,715,777$    3,976,776$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 4,395,887$      4,831,127$      4,800,618$    4,299,853$      4,159,240$    4,397,133$     

EXPENSES
Personnel

Salaries 251,846$          366,594$          305,063$       335,245$          361,166$       358,543$         
Health Insurance 34,263              22,533              21,279            31,187              43,381            49,254             
All Other Benefits 58,338              69,144              65,635            64,783              67,790            70,618             
   Subtotal 344,447            458,271            391,978         431,215            472,337         478,415           

Operating Expenses
Purchased Power/Trans/Fuel 1,776,582        1,973,340        2,061,424      1,944,704        2,039,191      2,091,062        
Insurance 56,487              70,219              72,910            75,958              61,630            57,887             
Professional Services 12,880              26,794              39,886            16,245              19,527            26,586             
Bldg & Mach Parts & Supplies 41,356              102,926            94,023            63,975              71,093            85,096             
Motor Fuel 15,509              16,415              20,770            16,406              7,730              7,644               
State & Local Taxes 105,248            123,080            131,481         125,583            122,340         143,369           
Deposit Refunds/Interest 51,023              52,829              52,955            62,426              56,838            54,311             
Other Expenses 87,708              105,832            137,694         72,879              101,043         106,640           
   Subtotal 2,146,793        2,471,435        2,611,142      2,378,175        2,479,392      2,572,596       

Capital Expenses
Poles/Transformers/Wire 14,010              46,295              39,407            32,366              40,995            37,290             
Vehicles/Equipment 109,786            -                    161,122         -                    7,195              -                   
All Other 48,438              8,829                14,647            309,434            10,361            31,160             
   Subtotal 172,234            55,124              215,176         341,800            58,551            68,450             

Debt Service -                    -                    -                  -                    -                  -                   
Transfers/Other Assistance 696,261            908,884            913,300         503,000            518,000         512,000           
Loan for Street Project -                    -                    452,132         -                    -                  -                   
Overhead Fees -                    -                    -                  202,200            210,603         233,806           
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,359,735$      3,893,714$      4,583,727$    3,856,390$      3,738,883$    3,865,268$     

Revenues Over Expenditures 278,186$          (98,739)$          (635,504)$      226,573$          (23,106)$        111,509$         
  Less Transfers 974,447           810,145           706,581         400,907           494,894         623,509          

ENDING BALANCE 1,036,152$      937,413$         216,891$       443,463$         420,357$       531,865$         
as a percentage of expenses 30.8% 24.1% 4.7% 11.5% 11.2% 13.8%

105



Fund # 04
Employee Benefits

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 127$           (21,437)$     1,000$        28,832$      52,082$      20,523$      

REVENUE 19.923       22.433       
101 Ad Valorem Tax 430,979$    456,689$    467,468$    424,863$    473,228$    523,863$    
102 Delinquent Tax 8,373          16,378         16,611        22,489        12,531        28,449        
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 45,408        43,415         45,617        47,281        47,063        50,269        
215 Recreational Vehicle Tax 649              771              658              736              595              710              
216 16 / 20 M Vehicle Tax -                   -                    -                   244              463              1,755           
802 Reimbursed Expense -                   8,456           -                   4,400           10,579        

Reimb Health Ins - Water 10,478        24,545        29,232        
Reimb Health Ins - Elec 15,268        43,381        49,254        
Reimb Health Ins - Sewer 6,837           15,067        19,061        

830 Transfer from  Electric (General) 1,000          53,686         45,000        55,000        80                
Transfer from Rec Emp Ben Fund -                    -                   12,653        1,457           

TOTAL REVENUE 486,409$   579,395$    575,353$    600,249$    628,910$    702,673$    

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 486,536$   557,958$    576,353$    629,081$    680,993$    723,196$    

EXPENSES
By Object

103 FICA 133,530$    142,878$    134,895$    129,545$    129,418$    131,877$    
104 KPERS 91,944        122,168       122,850      125,530      131,130      150,533      
105 Health Insurance 229,657      248,531       235,306      244,165      332,306      251,426      
106 Workers' Compensation 47,739        56,900         45,597        46,622        41,541        52,817        
107 Unemployment Insurance 5,103          10,757         8,528           2,956           1,778           13,449        
206 Professional Services -                   -                    -               692              296              
220 Other Contractual 345              395              
710 Cash Basis Reserve -                   

Exceptional Employee Payouts
Reimbursement to 125/HRA 27,488        24,000        15,000        

TOTAL EXPENSES 507,973$   581,234$    547,521$    576,998$    660,469$    615,497$    

Revenues Over Expenditures (21,564)$     (1,839)$        27,832$      23,251$      (31,559)$     87,175$      

ENDING BALANCE (21,437)$    (23,276)$     28,832$      52,082$      20,523$      107,698$    
as a percentage of expenses -4.2% -4.0% 5.3% 9.0% 3.1% 17.5%

106



Fund # 09
Industrial

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 31,486$         33,098$      45,540$   48,169$   61,237$     35,121$     

REVENUE
101 Ad Valorem Tax 7,948$           (2)$              5$             (6)$            -$               5$              
102 Delinquent Tax 189                 252             157           132           12              7                 
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 1,120             911             179           
215 Recreational Vehicle Tax 17                   15               1               
801 Miscellaneous (Land Lease) 16,130           15,185        18,184     21,715     24,306       14,793       
802 Reimbursed Expense (7,473)            -                   5,600         
811 Lease Payment (JTC Oil) 2,600        12,000       13,000       
880 150th Birthday Celebration

Sale of Fixed Assets/Real Estate 12,000       
TOTAL REVENUE 17,931$         16,361$      18,526$   24,441$   36,318$     45,405$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 49,417$         49,459$      64,066$   72,611$   97,556$     80,526$     

EXPENSES
By Object

204 Insurance -$                    -$                -$              -$              1,269$       1,814$       
206 Professional Services 7,071             150             1,933        5,243        1,878         1,979         
208 Printing and Advertising 3,327         1,110         
220 Other Contractual Services 3,734             3,365          12,159     3,530        1,218         2,642         
320 Other Commodities 5,514             405             1,805        -            

Loan to Golf Course for Zoysia -                  -              -            -            42,742       
Purchase of Land 12,000       

711 Lease Payments to the State -                  -              -            2,600        12,000       11,000       
TOTAL EXPENSES 16,319$         3,920$        15,896$   11,373$   62,434$     30,546$     

Revenues Over Expenditures 1,612$           12,441$      2,630$     13,068$   (26,116)$   14,859$     

ENDING BALANCE 33,098$         45,539$      48,169$   61,237$   35,121$     49,980$     
as a percentage of expenses 202.8% 1161.7% 303.0% 538.4% 56.3% 163.6%

107



Fund # 12
Street Improvement

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 65,903$       14,074$      1,000$       4,662$       99,272$     122,076$   

REVENUE
210 Gasoline Tax 113,722$    121,259$   117,273$   115,076$   111,162$   113,542$   
211 County Connecting Links 5,100           5,100          5,100          5,100          5,100          5,100          
403 Building & Zoning Permits -                    -                   

Loan From Electric
802 Reimbursed Expense 896               1,556          15               
803 Transfer from Electric -                    31,231        17,000       -                   -                   

Reimb from CIP-Streets 65,786       3,831          
901 Sale of Fixed Assets

TOTAL REVENUE 119,718$    159,146$   139,373$   185,962$   120,094$   118,657$   

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 185,621$    173,220$   140,373$   190,624$   219,365$   240,733$   

EXPENSES
By Object

Contractual Services 59,852         41,724        46,017$     8,134$       2,936$       7,067$       
Machine Parts 11,855         14,561        10,367       11,852       -              -              
Street Materials 35,898         45,895        50,958       53,437       1,089          -              
Fuel 6,510           10,255        10,125       17,930       -              -              
Other Commodities 3,149           2,977          737             -              35,039       37,073       
Equipment -                -               -              -              -              69,408       
Chip/Seal -                -               -              -              58,225       -              
Other Capital Outlay 13,020         56,808        17,506       -              -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 171,547$    172,220$   135,711$   91,353$     97,289$     113,548$   

Revenues Over Expenditures (51,829)$     (13,074)$    3,662$       94,609$     22,805$     5,110$       

ENDING BALANCE 14,074$       1,000$        4,662$       99,272$     122,076$   127,186$   
as a percentage of expenses 8.2% 0.6% 3.4% 108.7% 125.5% 112.0%

108



Fund # 13
Bond & Interest

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 125,066$     123,250$   64,375$    61,002$      96,892$     88,617$     

REVENUE 10.945       10.449      
101 Ad Valorem Tax 152,401$     128,078$   190,698$  233,685$    220,616$  231,834$   
102 Delinquent Tax 2,431            5,239          5,110         8,016           5,693         13,237        
205 Motor Vehicle Tax 11,891         14,301        13,507      17,928        24,058       24,226        
215 Recreational Vehicle Tax 165               265              190            290              319             853             
216 16/20M Vehicle Tax 34                
826 Transfer from CIP-Streets 5,000           19,159        
831 Transfer In from Sewer 200,000       200,000      200,000    310,000      434,000     435,000     
833 Transfer In from Water 27,235        59,827       59,827        

TOTAL REVENUE 440,094$     347,883$   409,504$ 602,154$    744,512$  784,510$   

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 565,160$     471,133$   473,879$ 663,155$    841,404$  873,127$   

EXPENSES
By Object

221 Neighborhood Revitalization -$                  -$                 -$               -$                 -$                -$                 
Police Station Debt
Main Street Project Debt

501 Bond Principal 165,000       124,000      136,000    282,000      444,000     457,000     
502 Bond Interest 276,910       282,758      276,878    284,263      308,788     296,495     

TOTAL EXPENSES 441,910$     406,758$   412,878$ 566,263$    752,788$  753,495$   

Revenues Over Expenditures (1,816)$        (58,875)$    (3,374)$     35,890$      (8,275)$      31,015$     

ENDING BALANCE 123,250$     64,375$      61,002$    96,892$      88,617$     119,632$   
as a percentage of expenses 27.9% 15.8% 14.8% 17.1% 11.8% 15.9%

109



Fund # 16
Sewer

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 386,964$        449,525$        428,138$        361,440$        335,552$        383,948$        

REVENUE
510 Sales/Charges 778,941$        775,883$        771,765$        748,972$        825,379$        818,794$        

Rate Increase
513 New Utility Services 400                  700                  350                  -                       350                  
802 Reimbursed Expense 3,060              339                  6,053              1,500              
901 Sale of Fixed Assets 739                  

TOTAL REVENUE 782,401$       776,922$       772,115$       748,972$       831,432$       821,383$       

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 1,169,365$    1,226,447$    1,200,253$    1,110,413$    1,166,984$    1,205,331$    

EXPENSES
By Object

Salaries & Wages 98,950$          123,915$        114,949$        107,078$        111,171$        146,542$        
Utilities 25,852            40,380            35,475            33,363            32,187            52,833            
Prof Services & Contract Maint 23,681            33,248            11,752            32,067            3,096              16,418            
Chemicals 17,548            9,477              9,566              13,801            7,054              4,875              
Parts & Supplies 32,503            24,954            25,489            18,013            27,415            14,596            
All Other Capital Outlay 17,213            8,625              88,161            -                   -                   4,463              
Debt Service 250,714          250,714          250,713          125,357          -                   -                   
Phase II Loan -                   
Transfer to Bond & Interest 200,000          200,000          200,000          310,000          434,000          435,000          
Transfer to General Fund 39,500            84,500            77,900            39,000            39,000            41,000            
Administrative Fee -                   -                   -                   62,400            71,629            56,792            
Mechanic/Repair Fee -                   -                   -                   15,000            15,717            18,412            
All Other Expenses 13,879            20,849            24,808            18,782            41,767            56,989            

TOTAL EXPENSES 719,840$       796,662$       838,813$       774,861$       783,036$       847,921$       

Revenues Over Expenditures 62,561$          (19,740)$        (66,698)$        (25,889)$        48,396$          (26,538)$        

ENDING BALANCE 449,525$       429,785$       361,440$       335,552$       383,948$       357,409$       
as a percentage of expenses 62.4% 53.9% 43.1% 43.3% 49.0% 42.2%

110



Fund # 24
Capital Improvements - General

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 16,622$     26,139$       1,075$      3,790$        357,727$     210,479$     

REVENUE
801 Miscellaneous 700$          -$             -$              -$                 326$             -$                  
830 Transfer In from Electric Fund 75,000       75,000         27,500      380,000      118,000       135,000       

Sweeper Loan Proceeds 95,000          
Grant Receipts (Non-CDBG) 40,900          
Reimbursed Expenses 12,164        35,000          

TOTAL REVENUE 80,071$     77,075$       27,500$   392,164$    248,326$     175,900$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 96,693$     103,214$    28,575$   395,955$    606,053$     386,379$     

EXPENSES
By Object

206 Professional Services -$                78,386$       12,164$   -$                 -$                  -$                  
401 Building & Fixed Equipment -             -                12,620      5,408           3,023            
402 Improvements Other Than Buildin -             -                4,060           
404 Vehicles 51,275       23,753         21,450        27,000          30,759          
405 Operational Construction Equip 9,534            
407 Other Equipment 19,279       -                -               23,922          

Pool Planning 4,670           
Mold Abatement/Repairs 2,640           16,752          
Library Settlement Repair 35,000          
Sports Complex Playground 43,007          

` New Section in Cemetery -               2,136            
RICE Catalytic Converters -               242,036       
Relay Switches at the Power Plant 13,478          
LMI Survey 13,142          
Sports Complex Building
Sports Complex Upgrades
Street Sweeper 91,981          
Repair Garage at Cabin 2,765            
JB Park Improvements (Bridges, Shelters)
Irrigation System at Sports Complex -               
New Trailer for Mowing Crews
West Lake Road Repairs
Restrooms on Golf Course
Clubhouse Improvements
Repairs to City Hall - Outside
Trail Improvements Planning
Chip Seal Complex Parking Lot

TOTAL EXPENSES 70,554$     102,139$    24,784$   38,228$      395,573$     158,961$     

Revenues Over Expenditures (70,554)$   (102,139)$   2,716$      353,937$    (147,248)$    16,939$       

ENDING BALANCE 26,139$     1,075$         3,790$     357,727$    210,479$     227,419$     

111



Fund # 25
Capital Improvements - Streets

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE -$                     -$                 0$                0$                183,960$   19,159$     

REVENUE
Federal Grant Proceeds 496,945$   3,055$        -$                 
Donations
Interest 1,151          
Sale of Fixed Assets
Temporary Bond Notes 99,964        
Bond Proceeds 566,559     

830 Transfer In from Electric Fund 452,132     
TOTAL REVENUE -$                     -$                 949,077$   570,765$   -$                99,964$     

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE -$                     -$                 949,077$   570,765$   183,960$   119,123$   

EXPENSES
By Object

206 Professional Services -$                     -$                 -$                 (6,357)$      -$                 33,865$     
220 Other Contractrual 15,359        121             
402 Improv Other Than Buildings 949,077     3,691          

Reimb to Street Improv Fund 65,786        3,831          
Reimb to Electric Fund 291,162     160,970     
Reimb to CIP Gen 12,164        
Reimb to Bond and Interest 5,000          19,159        
Council Room Project
Police Station Project

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                     -$                 949,077$   386,805$   164,801$   53,144$     

ENDING BALANCE -$                     -$                 0$                183,960$   19,159$     65,979$     

112



Fund # 26
Capital Improvements - Sewer

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE -$                 -$              -$                -$                -$                  (301,209)$    

REVENUE
Federal Grant Proceeds -$            -$                -$                  
Transfer In from Sewer
SRLF Proceeds 1,030,669    

TOTAL REVENUE -$                 -$              -$                -$                -$                  1,030,669$ 

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE -$                 -$              -$                -$                -$                  729,460$     

EXPENSES
By Object

206 Professional Services -$                 -$              -$                -$                92,658$       112,289$     
220 Other Contractual 600               
401 Building & Fixed Equipment 540,354       
402 Improvements Other Than Buildings 208,551       208,000       

Interest 8,088            
Vehicles
Other Equipment

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                 -$              -$                -$                301,209$     869,331$     

ENDING BALANCE -$                 -$              -$                -$                (301,209)$   (139,872)$   

113



Fund # 27
Capital Improvements - Grants/Police Station

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE -$               -$              1,180$     0$             -$                260,005$    

REVENUE
Federal Grant Proceeds 50,432$   -$              -$                -$                  
Transfer In from Library Fund 20,020     
Donations 500              
Sale of Fixed Assets 40,000         
Bond Proceeds 590,000     600,036      
Reimbursed Expenses 3,318           

TOTAL REVENUE -$              -$              70,452$   -$              590,000$   643,854$    

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE -$              -$              71,632$   0$             590,000$   903,859$    

EXPENSES
By Object

401 Building & Fixed Equipment -$               -$              71,632$   -$              -$                -$                  
402 Improvements Other Than Buildings
404 Vehicles
407 Other Equipment

Council Room Project
Police Station Project 329,995     51,773         
Parking Lot
Bond Principal 590,000      
Bond Interest 10,036         

TOTAL EXPENSES -$              -$              71,632$   -$              329,995$   651,809$    

ENDING BALANCE -$              -$              0$             0$             260,005$   252,050$    

114



2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Change

1 General Operating 24,146$          11,555$          112,737$       54,598$          55,982$          30,824$          111,385$       202,579$       234,072$       209,926$       
2 Water 24,326            32,117            3,847              25,873            1,001              43,575            176,093          206,190          122,292          97,966            
3 Electric 101,713          455,008          757,966          1,036,152      937,413          216,891          443,463          420,357          531,865          430,152          
4 Employee Benefit 49,748            13,394            127                 (21,437)          (23,276)          28,832            52,082            20,523            107,698          57,950            
5 Refuse 2,685              3,285              5,006              6,024              6,472              4,725              6,252              5,511              19,986            17,301            
6 Library 4,257              3,670              (21,178)          (9,385)             25,678            91,626            115,754          98,394            102,054          97,797            
7 Recreation 578                 (21,664)          2,301              334                 1,295              714                 714                 -                  3,268              2,690              
9 Industrial Promotion 26,953            20,522            31,486            33,098            45,539            48,169            61,237            35,121            49,980            23,027            

11 Special Parks & Recreation 2,164              2,185              3,853              8,689              9,296              12,692            91,073            88,221            90,822            88,658            
12 Street Improvements 69,903            80,084            65,903            14,074            1,000              4,662              99,272            122,076          127,186          57,283            
13 Bond & Interest 60,336            73,354            125,066          123,250          64,375            61,002            96,892            88,617            119,632          59,296            
14 Public Safety Equipment 30,760            20,479            16,180            9,085              9,520              9,772              9,847              9,068              3,704              (27,056)          
16 Sewer 113,782          297,029          386,964          449,525          429,785          361,440          335,552          383,948          357,409          243,627          
17 Recreration Employee Benefit -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  422                 422                 
18 Golf Course 743                 639                 27,019            26,340            34,269            3,328              4,804              26,038            6,362              5,619              
20 Special 911 Revenue 12,549            11,979            11,979            11,979            9,897              9,897              9,897              9,897              9,897              (2,652)             
22 Tourism 9,272              7,629              21,635            15,013            6,225              3,723              9,423              7,979              25,564            16,292            

TOTAL - ALL FUNDS 533,915$       1,011,265$    1,550,891$    1,783,212$    1,614,471$    931,873$       1,623,739$    1,724,519$    1,912,215$    1,378,300$    

Ending Balance Changes for Budgeted Funds
Original - Revised Budget

115



 
 
 
 
  

   
 

2015-06-11 Update Memo  1  

Osawatomie City Hall 
439 Main Street  PO Box 37 

Osawatomie, KS  66064 
Phone:  (913)755-2146 

Fax:  (913)755-4164 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Don Cawby, City Manager 

Re: Projects & Issues Update 

Date: June 11, 2015 

Projects 

Sports Complex.  “Rain, Rain, Go Away!”  We are finally making progress on concrete this week 
and last, but we are definitely behind schedule thanks to a very wet May.  The building is down 
to a couple of items and should be signed off on by the end of the week.  The kitchen equipment 
to be provided by the City is all here, with the exception of a table, which we will decide on after 
installation of all other items.   

We still plan on sodding with Bermuda grass, but because most of it comes from Oklahoma, we 
have been delayed by the rain there as well.   

Condemnation Demolition.  This process has also been slowed by the rain, but we expect it to 
pick back up this week.  We have 2 more structures to bring down and final cleanup and grading 
of the lots. 

Longstanding Nuisances.  I wanted to let you know that we are in the process of sending out 
letters to several local property owners that have had ongoing nuisances for several years.  These 
nuisances have been allowed to exist in the past, but with the new ordinance, we hope to start 
tackling these issues.  Our first step is to ask them to abate the nuisance or provide us with 
documentation from the City that shows they were given special permission in the past to 
maintain the nuisance.  This will not necessarily allow the nuisance to continue, but it will give us 
an opportunity to learn the history and figure out a solution to the problem.  We have given these 
owners until the end of June to address the issue, so I would expect that you may hear from some 
of these owners over the next few weeks.   

Issues 

Recreation Changeover.  I have been in conversations with Supt. French, and hope to have a 
contract for you to vote on by the end of the month.  Right now I am the hold up on this. 

116



2015-06-11 Update Memo  2  

Budget.  We will begin tackling the budget at the June 25 meeting.  I am also projecting that we 
will need a special budget meeting the 3rd Thursday in July, and possibly on the 5th Thursday, if 
we don’t get done.  

Upcoming Meetings/Dates 

June 17-21  Jamboree 

June 25  City Council Meeting 

July 9   City Council Meeting 

July 16   Possible Special Budget Workshop 

July 23   City Council Meeting 

117


	5.C ORDINANCE 2015-05xls.pdf
	Sheet1

	10.c.1 A5B0088 - Osawatomie First Amendment - JD redline 5-22-15 Tmo red 6-1.pdf
	Site #  A5B0088 / Osawatomie
	FIRST AMENDMENT TO SITE AGREEMENT

	10.e.1 2009-2014 Actual Expenditures - Major Funds.pdf
	01 - General Fund
	Revenues
	GF by Obj
	02-Water
	03-Electric
	04-EBF
	09-Industrial
	12-Street Imp
	13-Bond & Int
	16-Sewer
	24-CIP Fund
	25-CI Streets
	26-CI Sewer
	27-CI Grants

	10.e.1 2009-2014 Actual Expenditures - Major Funds.pdf
	01 - General Fund
	Revenues
	GF by Obj
	02-Water
	03-Electric
	04-EBF
	09-Industrial
	12-Street Imp
	13-Bond & Int
	16-Sewer
	24-CIP Fund
	25-CI Streets
	26-CI Sewer
	27-CI Grants

	10.e.2 Historical Ending Balances 2006-2014.pdf
	Hist End Bal




